
 
 
 

Highways Committee 
 
 
Date Thursday 10 November 2022 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 October 2022  (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Chester-Le-Street and Birtley Parking & Waiting Restrictions, 
Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate 
Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth  (Pages 7 - 72) 

6. Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney Parking & 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - 
Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth  (Pages 73 - 100) 

7. Spennymoor Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation 
Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of 
Regeneration, Economy & Growth  (Pages 101 - 124) 

8. Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill & Deaf Hill Parking & 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - 
Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth  (Pages 125 - 142) 

9. Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of 
Regeneration, Economy & Growth  (Pages 143 - 162) 

10. Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 
 



Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
2 November 2022 
 
 
To: The Members of the Highways Committee 

 
 Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

Councillor G Hutchinson (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors D Boyes, A Bell, T Duffy, C Kay, K Earley, 
J Higgins, J Howey, R Manchester, E Mavin, B Moist, D Oliver, 
E Peeke, I Roberts, K Robson, A Simpson, A Sterling, 
F Tinsley, M Wilson and D Wood 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Joanne McCall Tel: 03000 269701 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 
At a Meeting of Highways Committee held in Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Durham on Thursday 13 October 2022 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor R Ormerod (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors D Boyes, A Bell, C Kay, K Earley, J Higgins, J Howey, G Hutchinson 
(Vice-Chair), R Manchester, K Robson, A Simpson, A Sterling, F Tinsley, M Wilson, 
D Wood, M Stead and D Sutton-Lloyd  
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E Mavin, D Oliver, E Peeke 
and I Roberts.  
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
Councillor M Stead was present as substitute for Councillor E Mavin and Councillor 
D Sutton Lloyd was present as substitute for Councillor E Peeke. 
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2022 were agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the chair.  
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5 Proposal to re designate 'Nanny Poes Lane 'in Middlestone, to the 
Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way as Restricted 
Byway after further review of evidence  
 
The Committee received a joint report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods 
and Climate Change and the Corporate Director of Resources to agree the 
proposal to re designate ‘Nanny Poes Lane ‘in Middlestone, to the Definitive Map 
and Statement of Public Rights of Way as Restricted Byway after further review of 
evidence (for copy see file of minutes).  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



M. Ogden, Access and Rights of Way Team Leader gave a detailed presentation 
which included the location of the proposal and photographs of the area. He 
explained than an application was submitted in September 2018 and initially the 
Highways Committee agreed to the making of a Draft Order confirming the route’s 
addition to the Definitive Map as a Bridleway. After a review of the evidence, 
prompted by an objection to a similar Order, it was decided to seek re-classification 
of this route as Restricted Byway. 
 
Councillor Kay addressed the Committee as local member and noted that Nanny 
Poes lane was not an area that was well known by himself or the residents of 
Middlestone and that re designating the lane to restricted byway would have no 
impact on residents. He confirmed that he understood the change from a bridleway 
to restricted byway and was in full support of the officer’s recommendation.  
 
Councillor Boyes noted that at a previous meeting of the Committee, members had 
already resolved the route as a bridleway and that re designating it to restricted 
byway was simply to allow the additional right for a carriage or other horse drawn 
vehicle. He asked whether there was a more efficient way to make administrative 
changes to the Definitive Map.  
 
Senior Lawyer Regulatory and Enforcement C. Cuskin appreciated Councillor 
Boyes frustration but clarified that such decisions could not be made without the 
approval of the Committee, however she agreed to feed this back to the 
constitutional working group.   
 
Councillor Sterling referred to the improvement works that were necessary to 
develop the lane to restricted byway standard and asked if the costs associated 
with these works were known. The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader 
explained that to develop the lane to a restricted byway would incur a cost to the 
Local Authority in addition to long term maintenance. He advised that the costs at 
this stage were not known but that this was unavoidable and not material to the 
decision. Councillor Sterling stated it would be helpful to know the cumulative 
impact if a high volume of these applications were to be received. 
 
With regards to the process for making changes to the Definitive Map, Councillor 
Tinsley asked what would happen if the Committee did not approve the proposal. 
The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader explained that an Order would have 
to be made for a bridleway, which would then lead to an objection and a request to 
the Secretary of State to amend the status, but that the process for this would be 
lengthy and would absorb a considerable amount of officer’s time.  
 
Councillor Tinsley agreed to move the proposal in line with the officer’s 
recommendation and this was seconded by Councillor Wood.  
 

Page 4



Councillor Ormerod stated that in his opinion the countryside should be as 
accessible as possible and that the recommendation to change Nanny Poes lane to 
restricted byway did slightly improve this. 
 
Resolved 
 
That a Definitive Map Modification Order for the addition to the Definitive Map & 
Statement of a Restricted Byway between points A & B on the plan (Document A), 
known as Nanny Poes Lane, under the provisions of section 53(3)(c)(i) of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, be approved and that the Corporate Director of 
Resources be informed accordingly.  
 

6 Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  
 
The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader provided the Committee with an 
update on Definitive Map Modification Orders following members decisions at 
previous meetings of the Committee.   
 
He confirmed that Baxter wood near Durham had received no objections and was 
now on the Definitive Map. Referring to Watergate Lane where it was agreed to 
upgrade the public footpath to a public bridleway, he noted that the order had been 
published, and the new landowner had objected to it. He explained that the case 
had now been referred to the secretary of state and that they were awaiting a 
timetable for proceedings and that it could take up to a year for a decision to be 
reached and may include a public enquiry  
 
With regards to approval of adding a footpath at Ladley Burn, Wolsingham to the 
Definitive Map, he noted that there had been a great deal of local interest and that 
the landowner was opposed to it. He confirmed that the landowner did not attend 
the meeting of the Committee but that he was anticipating an objection from them, 
and if received would need to be referred to the secretary of state and could result 
in a public enquiry.  
 
He went on to advise that regarding the alleged public footpath from West View to 
St Mary’s Church Yard, Barnard Castle, which the Committee had refused, the 
applicant had appealed to the Secretary of State and at this stage it was unclear 
whether this would result in a Public Inquiry. 
 
Finally, with regards to Nanny Pops Lane, he noted that as the Order had received 
an objection the Council no longer had jurisdiction over this application and it would 
now be referred to the secretary of state to modify the lane on the Definitive Map to 
restricted byway. He offered to share information regarding the costs of works to 
Nanny Poes lane at a future meeting of the Committee clarifying this would be for 
information purposes only.  
 

Page 5



Councillor Sterling had great appreciation for the work carried out by the team and 
wished that following an objection there could be an additional stage to the process 
to reduce the cases referred to the secretary of state. The Access and Rights of 
Way Team Leader concurred and explained that all cases referred to the secretary 
of state involved a great deal of work and absorbed a considerable amount of 
officer time.   
 
Councillor Boyes referred to the proposal for Nanny Poes lane and asked whether 
reasonable steps could have been taken to propose restricted byway at the first 
meeting of the Committee. The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader agreed 
and explained that the issues surrounding this had now hopefully been addressed. 
 
Councillor Earley commented that he was aware of an application that was soon to 
be submitted and asked if it would be helpful for the applicant to contact officers in 
advance. The Access and Rights of Way Team Leader confirmed that officers were 
always pleased to talk to perspective applicants and resolve any potential issues 
before the application went to committee. 
 
Councillor Ormerod suggested that it would be helpful to have regular updates at 
future meetings of the Highways Committee to update members on the outcomes 
of applications for Definitive Map Modification Orders. Members welcomed this 
suggestion.  
 

Resolved 
 

i. That information regarding the costs of works to Nanny Poes lane be shared 
at a future meeting of the Committee, for information purposes only; 
 

ii. That regular updates on Definitive Map Modification Orders following the 
decisions of members be shared at future meetings of the Highways 
Committee. 

 

Page 6



1 
 

 

             

 Highways Committee 

10th November 2022 

Chester-Le-Street and Birtley  

Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic 

Regulation Amendment Order 2022 

 Ordinary Decision/Key Decision No.  

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth 

Councillor Elizabeth Scott, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Economy and Growth.   

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Chester-Le-Street North, Chester-Le-Street East & Chester-Le-Street West 
Central. 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To advise Members of objections received to the consultation 

concerning changes to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in Chester-

Le-Street. 

 

1.2 To request that members consider the objections made during the 

informal and formal consultation period. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to 

decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with the Amendment 

Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 

Economy and Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.  

The final decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under 

delegated powers. 

 

2 Executive Summary 

2.1 The County Council are committed to regularly reviewing Traffic 

Regulation Orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them are 

relevant and appropriate. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

2.2 Representations have been received requesting a review of existing, 

and provision of additional, restrictions in Chester-Le-Street.  

2.3 Having considered these requests, Officers have determined that the 

changes listed below would be of benefit in terms of improving road 

safety and reducing congestion. It is therefore proposed to amend the 

current Chester-Le-Street & Birtley Parking and Waiting Restrictions, 

Traffic Regulation Order to allow the identified changes to be 

implemented. 

2.4 Local members fully supported all proposals. Durham Constabulary are 

in full support.  

2.5 Consultation Period: 

  From To 

Statutory Consultees 25.01.22 & 
27.06.22 

15.02.22 & 
18.07.22 

Informal Consultation 30.03.22 20.04.22 

Formal Consultation 18.08.22 08.09.22 

 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 Committee is recommended to: 

Endorse the proposal, in principle, to amend the Chester-Le-Street & 
Birtley Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order, with 
the final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated 
powers. 

4 Proposal, Objections & Responses 

4.1 The proposed locations for the TRO that received objections during the 
consultation stages are detailed below.    

4.2 Location 1 – Bullion Lane  (to introduce no waiting at any time 

restrictions) 

4.3 Proposal Background    

Bullion Lane is located within Chester-Le-Street’s West-Central ward. It 

is located adjacent to Chester-Le-Street train station and forms a 

crossroad junction with South Approach. As a result of this, the area 

can be heavily trafficked at certain times of the day.  

Page 8



3 
 

On the south-eastern corner of the crossroads, the existing council yard 

has been demolished and housing is currently being constructed.  At 

the planning stage, the County Council’s planning department have 

anticipated an increase in vehicle occupancy associated with the new 

development. They believe that this will lead to obstructive parking 

which will restrict traffic flow around the crossroads. Planning 

Conditions require an appropriate scheme be introduced to address 

these concerns before full development of the site can be completed.  

It is therefore proposed to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions 

on South Approach leading into Bullion Lane on both sides, to prevent 

obstructive parking and reduce congestion.  

4.4 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

2 1 1 

 

4.5 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

18.08.22 – 08.09.22 0 0 

 

4.6 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.7 Objections: 

 1 property objected to this proposal after the closure of the informal 
consultation period, the reasons for their objection has been 
summarised below: 

 “I have read the most recent plans, and I am both upset and 
disappointed to learn that the plans include intentions to put double 
yellow lines outside/adjacent to my home.” 

 “It has been brought to my attention (via a neighbour) that the 
parking opposite my home will now be permit only.” 

Page 9



4 
 

 “I feel we are being penalised and in turn, being made to pay for 
permits to allow our second vehicles and any visitors to park outside 
our home.” 

4.8 DCC Response: 

 There is concern that the increase in residential properties, and with 
it the influx of additional vehicles, will lead to increased levels of 
obstructive parking around the crossroads of Bullion Lane and South 
Approach. 

 This level of obstructive parking would restrict traffic flow and 
visibility for all approaching users; therefore, restrictions have been 
proposed in locations where there are legitimate concerns for road 
safety.  

 Whilst there are already existing permit holder only restrictions 
adjacent to No.'s 2-18 Bullion Terrace, which have been in place 
since 2016, there are no further proposals to introduce any additional 
permit restrictions on Bullion Lane. 

4.9 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

4.10 Location 2 – Edward Street  (to extend existing restricted waiting, 

8am-5pm, restrictions) 

4.11 Proposal Background    

 Edward Street is located to the west of Chester-Le-Street’s heavily 
commercialised Front Street. There are existing ‘restricted waiting, 8am-
5pm’ restrictions either side of its junction with Clarence Terrace which 
look to improve visibility for all road users approaching this junction.  

We have received reports from local residents, supported by the local 
elected member, that vehicles accessing the local facilities are parking 
obstructively around this junction and the existing markings do not 
extend far enough into Edward Street to maintain a running lane of 
traffic.  

It is therefore proposed to extend these existing restrictions either side 
of Edward Street to prevent obstructive parking and improve visibility 
and traffic flow for approaching road users.  

 

 

 

Page 10



5 
 

4.12 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

4 1 1 

 

4.13 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

18.08.22 – 08.09.22 0 1 

 

4.14 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.15 Objections: 

 1 property has objected to this proposal at both the initial and formal 
consultation stage, the reasons for these objections have been 
summarised below: 

 “This idea you’re proposing is isolating tenants and furthermore limit 
them to a parking space.” 

 “I’d be in favour of a permit scheme, as people parking here don’t 
live here at all.” 

4.16 DCC Response: 

 We have received numerous reports over recent years concerning 
the limited access/egress around the junction from Edward Street 
into Clarence Terrace as a result of Obstructive parking. This has led 
to a reduction in visibility for approaching traffic and limited access 
for larger vehicles to manoeuvre which does pose significant 
concern for road safety. 

 It has been highlighted to us on a number of occasions that Edward 
Street is stretched in accommodating on-street parking on both sides 
and whilst we have received a number of requests to restrict parking 
for the full extent of one side Edward Street, it is evident that the 
perceived benefits in reducing obstructive parking would not 
outweigh the significant parking displacement.  

Page 11



6 
 

 The proposals of extending ‘restricted waiting, 8am-5pm’ restrictions 
around the immediate junction will prevent commuter vehicles from 
parking in this location whilst maintaining resident on-street parking 
on an evening. 

 The extension of these restrictions, on the northern side of the road, 
by an additional gable end to Albert Street will ensure there is a 
constant running lane of traffic when vehicles are approaching the 
junction for access/egress. 

 Initial requests for a permit parking scheme must be accompanied by 
support from at least 25% of the households in the street and 
supported by the local Councillors, or is raised by the local Councillor 
on behalf of the residents. 

4.17 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

4.18 Location 3 – Elmway  (to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions) 

4.19 Proposal Background    

Elmway is located to the north-west of Chester-Le-Street. It is accessed 
via its junction with Pelton Lane. Elmway is a narrow residential street 
which acts as an access road to a larger network of residential estates.  

Officers from Durham County Council’s Traffic Section attended a site 
meeting in May 2021 with representatives of Durham Constabulary, 
Councillor Tracie Smith and local residents to identify areas of 
significant road safety concern.  

It was noted that vehicles parking around the Elmway access road, 
particularly around its junction with Hollycrest, restricted visibility and 
accessibility for all approaching road users. Advisory markings were 
initially placed here to deter obstructive parking but they have had a 
limited effect.  

It is therefore proposed to formalise the existing markings as ‘no waiting 
at any time’ restrictions to further prevent obstructive parking and 
improve traffic flow.  

4.20 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

4 1 1 

 

Page 12



7 
 

4.21 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

18.08.22 – 08.09.22 0 2 

 

4.22 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.23 Objections: 

 3 local residents have objected to this proposal, the reasons for these 
objections have been summarised below: 

 “I am disabled and cannot park outside of my home now. I find it 
hard to walk any distance.” 

 “Where would visitors to these flats park? What these signs would do 
is isolate the residents of the Elmway flats.” 

 “Enforcing ‘no waiting at any time’ will only move the problem 
elsewhere.” 

 “DCC should invest the money in this to solve the issue altogether 
and help bring the estate in line with the times.” 

 “The residents in general agree that the bend in question is a 
problem and do not object to the action being taken but feel that the 
left side of the bend as you go in to Elmway is unnecessary long and 
should be in line with the length on the right-hand side.” 

4.24 DCC Response: 

 It was highlighted that when vehicles park either side of Elmway, 
immediately and leading up to the junction with Hollycrest, visibility is 
restricted for all approaching road users. This has resulted in a 
number of head-to-head confrontations with vehicles.  

 Advisory white markings were introduced here as an immediate 
measure to address obstructive parking, although unfortunately they 
have had limited impact in reducing the identified road safety 
concerns.  

 Restrictions are proposed for the current extent of the existing keep 
clear markings only and whilst they prevent parking, vehicles are 
permitted to load/unload from these restrictions for as long as 
necessary. 

Page 13



8 
 

 These restrictions also permit any vehicle displaying a valid blue 
badge to park over them (provided they are not parked in a manner 
which causes obstruction) for up to 3 hours. Residents with a blue 
badge/disability requirements will therefore be permitted to park on 
these restrictions until a more suitable parking space becomes 
available.  

 Away from these restrictions, vehicles are permitted to park 
anywhere on the adopted highway providing their vehicle is taxed, 
tested and parked in a non-obstructive manner. 

 Durham County Council’s Highway’s department are currently 
working with Councillor Tracie Smith to budget an extension within 
the existing car park to the rear of 145-155 Elmway. If successful, 
this will improve the off-street parking availibity for local residents.  

4.25 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

 

4.26 Location 4 – Front Street (to amend existing restricted bay 

restrictions) 

4.27 Proposal Background    

Front street is the heart of Chester-Le-Street’s commercialised town 

centre. At the southern end of Front Street there are currently 

formalised ‘no waiting at any time excepts taxis 6pm-6am’ restrictions to 

support the increased hospitality/food and beverage industry presence.  

Whilst the current restrictions do not allow vehicles other than taxis to 

park in the designated bays, they do permit any vehicle to load/unload 

for as long as required. In accordance with this type of restriction, civil 

enforcement officers typically allow a 5-minute observation period for 

loading/unloading prior to issuing a penalty charge notice.  

It has been reported via local members, Councillors Karen Fantarrow 

and Bill Moist, that vehicles have begun to abuse the current restrictions 

on an evening. This has led to the displacement of taxis who have 

begun queueing north into Front Street. It has been noted that the 

increased travel distance between the bars/restaurants and available 

taxis has subsequently led to increased antisocial behaviour in the area. 

It is therefore proposed to amend the current ‘no waiting’ element of the 

existing restriction to ‘no stopping except taxis, 6pm-6am’. This 

restriction does not need to be accompanied by an observation period 

Page 14



9 
 

and will allow for effective civil enforcement to improve accessibility for 

the intended road user group.  

 

 

 

4.28 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

24 0 2 

 

4.29 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

18.08.22 – 08.09.22 0 0 

 

4.30 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.31 Objections: 

 2 local business have objected to this proposal, the reasons for these 
objections have been summarised below: 

 “The parking bay has been reduced. It should at least reach the limit 
of 176 [Front Street].” 

 “There are grounds to extend it further without obstructing the bus 
stop.” 

 “There is no need for taxis to stop this far up the street! There is 
many night time businesses at the top of Front Street that absolutely 
need spaces for quick pick ups and drop offs.” 

4.32 DCC Response: 

 The taxi ranks were introduced here originally to address a number 
of road safety problems that were occurring on an evening:  

Page 15



10 
 

o Taxis were pulling up anywhere they desired between West 
Lane and Ropery Lane Roundabout.  

o The level of public order incidents, including damage and 
undesirable behaviour at shop frontages, were increasing 
as people were drawn to this end of the town.  

 The nearest place for any single length of kerbside space to be 
created for taxi provision, and away from the main access to a 
licensed premise, was where the main rank is now located on the 
east side of the road. 

 It was recognised that on occasion traffic through Front Street may 
be slowed, especially if a bus stops in the bus stop opposite, 
however, there have been limited concerns with congestion as a 
result of buses using the available bus stops and ultimately this has 
helped maintain lower vehicle speeds in the area, which we would 
not want to undo. 

 These proposals will amend the type of restriction only to encourage 
more effective enforcement and will not alter the existing layout of 
the bays. Extending the bays further north on the eastern of Front 
Street would risk restricting the turning circle of southbound buses 
attempting to access West Lane. 

4.33 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

4.34 Location 5 – Tuart Street (to introduce no waiting at any time 

restrictions) 

4.35 Proposal Background    

Tuart Street is a narrow residential street located immediately west of 
the heavily commercialised Front Street. In a bid to tackle long-stay 
commuter parking, permit parking restrictions were previously 
introduced on the adjoining Co-Operative Street which has 
unfortunately led to an increase in obstructive parking within Tuart 
Street, particularly around its junctions with adjacent residential streets.  

We have received reports from local residents that vehicles parking on 
and around the junctions within Tuart Street obstruct visibility and 
restrict access/egress. Advisory markings were previously introduced 
here to deter parking around these junctions; however, they have had 
limited effect.  

It is now proposed to formalise these advisory markings as ‘no waiting 
at any time’ restrictions, which will allow enforcement to prevent 
obstructive parking and improve access/egress within Tuart Street.  

Page 16



11 
 

The informal consultation initially included proposals to extend existing 
permit restrictions into Tuart Street, however, a satisfactory in-favour 
majority was not achieved and these proposals were withdrawn.    

 

 

4.36 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

53 6 5 

 

4.37 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

18.08.22 – 08.09.22 0 1 

 

4.38 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.39 Objections: 

 6 objections from local residents were recorded. As the informal 
consultation initially included proposals to extend existing permit 
restrictions into Tuart Street, of the 5 objections received as part of the 
informal consultation, only 1 directly objected to proposed ‘no waiting at 
any time’ restrictions, however the reasons for each objection have 
been summarised below: 

 “I object to double yellow lines outside my house! Reducing the 
available parking further.” 

 “Money making scheme as per!” 

 “I need a disabled bay for obvious reasons, we here are either 
pensioners or disabled. The parking outside mine needs to be 
allocated to Morningside Court.” 

4.40 DCC Response: 

Page 17



12 
 

 We have received reports from local residents that when vehicles 

park around the accesses to Morningside Court, West View & Co-

Operative Street Rear, access/egress can be obstructed due to the 

lack of manoeuvrable space on the highway. Parking immediately on 

and either side of these junctions also restricts the view of 

approaching traffic for all road users, which poses concern for road 

safety. 

 Advisory white markings were introduced here as an immediate 
measure to address obstructive parking, although unfortunately they 
have had limited impact in reducing the identified road safety 
concerns. 

 The restrictions are proposed for the current extent of the existing 
keep clear markings only and whilst they prevent parking, vehicles 
are permitted to load/unload from these restrictions for as long as 
necessary 

 In line with Durham County Council’s Parking Policy, disabled 
persons bays will not be introduced for use by an individual resident, 
or property, in residential areas. However, these restrictions will still 
accommodate vehicles displaying a valid blue badge (providing they 
are not parked in a manner which obstructs the highway) for up to 3 
hours, until a more suitable parking space becomes available.  

 Proposals to extend the existing permit restrictions on Co-Operative 
Street into Tuart Street were also pursued as part of the initial 
consultation, however the desired criteria was not satisfied to 
progress this scheme.  

4.41 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

5 Conclusion 

5.1 Having considered the evidence of obstructive and inconsiderate parking 
and the objections to the proposals, Officers remain of the view that it is 
necessary to introduce the proposals in order to address the identified 
highway safety issues. Accordingly, it is recommended that Members 
agree in principle to endorse the proposal to proceed with the 
implementation of the Chester-Le-Street & Birtley Parking & Waiting 
Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 with the final 
decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

6 Background papers 

6.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File: 

Page 18



13 
 

L:\TRAFPROJ\06 REGULATION DESIGN & 
IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Chester le Street\Traffic Regulation 
Orders (Parking Restrictions)\CLS 2022 January 

Author(s) 

[Ewan Brown]    Tel:  03000 263953 

[Lee Mowbray]    Tel:  03000 263693 

[Kieron Moralee]    Tel:  03000 263368 

[Dave Lewin]    Tel:  03000 263582 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



14 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority 

and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Finance 

LTP Budget. 

Consultation 

Is in accordance with SI:2489. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

It is considered that there are no Equality and Diversity issues to be addressed 

as the proposed restrictions, as detailed above, will maintain provision for those 

with a valid disabled blue badge. 

Climate Change 

This TRO will allow for effective management of traffic to reduce congestion, 

reducing the overall amount of CO2 emissions.  

Human Rights 

Any interference with human rights is considered to be necessary in accordance 

with the law and proportionate in order to address highway safety issues. 

Crime and Disorder 

This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and 

improve road safety. 

Staffing 

Carried out by Strategic Traffic.  

Accommodation 

No impact. 

Risk 

Not Applicable. 

Procurement 

Operations, DCC. 

Page 20



15 
 

  

Page 21



16 
 

Appendix 2:  Location of Proposals  

 

Location 1: 

Bullion Lane 

Location 5: 

Tuart Street 

Location 4: 

Front Street 

Location 2: 

Edward Street 

Page 22



17 
 

  

Location 3: 

Elmway 

Location 5: 

Tuart Street 

Page 23



18 
 

Appendix 3:  Request History  

 

Location 1 – Bullion Lane:  
 
From: Chris George <Chris@rvengineering.co.uk>  

Sent: 06 December 2021 15:40 

To: Lee Mowbray <lee.mowbray@durham.gov.uk> 

Cc: R Vint Engineering Ltd; Robert Vint   

Subject: Bullion Lane & South Approach, Chester Le Street 

Good Afternoon Lee,  

I have been passed your details from the highways team at Durham County 

Council in relation to TROs.  

We have a scheme located on the south-eastern corner of the junction 

between Bullion Lane and South Approach in Chester Le Street.  

As part of the scheme, a draft planning condition has stated that: 

 

I have also attached a site plan showing the extents of double yellow lines 

required.  

Please can you let us know what the process is, any forms we need to 

complete and approximate timescales for each stage? 

I look forward to hearing from you soon. 

Kind Regards 

Chris George                                                                                                      

Civil/Drainage Engineer 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

mailto:Chris@rvengineering.co.uk
mailto:lee.mowbray@durham.gov.uk


19 
 

Location 2 – Edward Street:  
 
From: Maxine Stubbs <  

Sent: 11 March 2022 13:24 

To: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: 0091 - Chester-Le-Street 2022 TRO Proposals - Update 1 - 

EDWARD STREET 

Importance: High 

Hi Ewan, 

Is it too late to ask for an amendment to the Edward Street proposal? 

Historically we’re always getting complaints around access into and out of 

Edward Street from Clarence Terrace and in the whole area due to parking 

causing problems for vehicles getting through and for pedestrians as some 

vehicles park partially on the narrow footpaths – this was just raised again at 

one of our PACT’s this week. 

 

My view remains, as it has done for years, that yellow lining along the whole of 

one side of Edward Street as some residents would like just can’t be 

supported because the demand for parking in the area already outstrips 

supply on occasions and this will just make the situation worse and potentially 

more disagreements among neighbours. 

However, because access into and out of Edward Street via Clarence 

Terrace is the main concern could the NWAAT be extended on both 

sides of Edward Street up to the first back lane as shown on below 

screen shot? 

 

Page 25

mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk


20 
 

This may be the only way to try and put this one to bed so to speak. 

Any thoughts? 

 

Regards 

Maxine  

Maxine Stubbs 

Traffic Management Officer 

Cleveland and Durham Specialist Operations Unit 

Durham Constabulary 

 

From: Ewan Brown  

Sent: 11 March 2022 13:38 

To: Maxine Stubbs <  

Cc: Lee Mowbray <lee.mowbray@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: RE: 0091 - Chester-Le-Street 2022 TRO Proposals - Update 1 - 

EDWARD STREET 

Page 26

mailto:lee.mowbray@durham.gov.uk


21 
 

 

Hi Maxine,  

Quite spookily I’ve got a meeting with Lee and one of the residents in this area 

on Monday morning about parking problems there. I think both Lee and myself 

agree with your comments on removing parking on one side of Edward Street 

and so I’m glad we’re on the same page as I think this will be raised in the 

meeting.  

I don’t think we would have any objections with taking this amendment forward 

based on the information you’ve provided. Will look to get amended proposals 

circulated next week following the meeting.  

Many Thanks, 

 

Ewan Brown 

Civil Engineering Senior Technician 

 

 

  

Page 27



22 
 

Location 3 – Elmway:  
 

From: Cllr Tracie Smith <tracie.smith@durham.gov.uk>  
Sent: 21 March 2021 19:18 
To: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 
Cc: francis-p3 
Subject: Parking on a bend at Elmway 

 
Ewan 
 
There is a long-standing issue of parking on a bend at Elmway.  There has recently  
been a road traffic collision on the bend and residents inform me that there are near 
misses on a daily basis and only a matter of time before there is a fatality.   
 
I would like to request a feasibility study to be carried out to assess what safety 
measures would be appropriate to reduce the risk of traffic accidents on this bend. 
 
Happy to discuss. 
 
Regards. 
 
Councillor Tracie Smith 
 
Sent from my iPad 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28

mailto:tracie.smith@durham.gov.uk
mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk


23 
 

Location 4 – Front Street:  
 

From: Cllr Karen Fantarrow <Karen.Fantarrow@durham.gov.uk>  

Sent: 18 October 2021 13:26 

To: Gary Jackson <Gary.Jackson@durham.gov.uk>; Kieron Moralee 

<Kieron.Moralee@durham.gov.uk>; Ewan Brown 

<ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Cc: Cllr Bill Moist <Bill.Moist@durham.gov.uk>; Cllr Paul Sexton 

<Paul.Sexton@durham.gov.uk>; Cllr Beaty Bainbridge 

<Beaty.Bainbridge@durham.gov.uk>; Cllr Alan Bell 

<alan.bell@durham.gov.uk>; Cllr Philip Heaviside 

<Philip.Heaviside@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: taxi rank 

Good Afternoon 

I hope everyone is well, I don’t know who does what so I thought I would 

message you all. 

I was wondering how the consultations are progressing with regards to the taxi 

rank change at the top of Chester-Le-Street. It appears that since the road 

markings were renewed the rank is now smaller which has infuriated the 

drivers, why is this? 

The Taxi rank issue must be sorted out soon, last night I was down Chester-

Le-Street and I witnesses ASB due to the bottle neck caused by the rank, 

takeways and footfall. I hope that we can get a solution before there is a 

fatality. 

Looking forward to hearing from you. 

Karen 

Cllr Karen Fantarrow 

Chester-le Street West/Central and Pelton Fell Division 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

mailto:Karen.Fantarrow@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Gary.Jackson@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Kieron.Moralee@durham.gov.uk
mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Bill.Moist@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Sexton@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Beaty.Bainbridge@durham.gov.uk
mailto:alan.bell@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.Heaviside@durham.gov.uk


24 
 

From: Jonny Scott  

Sent: 10 November 2020 20:51 

To: Strategic Traffic <StrategicTraffic@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: Ashley House, Co-operative Terrace, Chester-Le-Street 

Hi Claire,  

Sorry to bring this issue up again. About a year ago you got the white keep 

clear line adjusted outside the opening to my property on Co-Operative Street 

in Chester le street. 

Unfortunately, the changes you made have made little or no difference to our 

situation and it has actually now worsened. 

Cars are now parking a full half way across our drive and we have been 

unable to get deliveries to our property at times. 

I would like if possible to be able to discuss this with you and see if we can 

come up with a solution. 

I appreciate this is way down the priority list during a global pandemic but if 

you have time would appreciate hearing back from you. 

Thanks 

Jonny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30

mailto:StrategicTraffic@durham.gov.uk


25 
 

Appendix 4:  Objection Details  

 
Location 1 – Bullion Lane  
 
From: Eleanor Ward  
Sent: 13 April 2022 15:26 
To: Planning <Planning@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: DISPUTE REGARDING KARBON HOMES DEVELOPMENT  

 
To whom it may concern,  
 
I am emailing to contest the latest submitted plans regarding the Karbon 
Homes housing development on Bullion Lane. I have read the most recent 
plans, and I am both upset and disappointed to learn that the plans include 
intentions to put double yellow lines outside/adjacent to my home.  
 
I have been a resident of Bullion Lane for over 20 years and live opposite the 
proposed development. It has been brought to my attention (via a neighbour) 
that the parking opposite my home will now be permit only. Currently this land 
is used by existing residents to park their cars as well as our visitors.  
 
As existing residents of Bullion Lane/The Avenue, I feel we are being 
penalised and in turn, being made to pay for permits to allow our second 
vehicles and any visitors to park outside our home. The financial cost incurred 
is unexpected and met with a lot of anger.  
 
The remaining space outside our property is insufficient for the houses here 
and means we have no access for any visitors, let alone any disabled visitors. 
I feel this decision regarding permit parking has not considered the existing 
residents, yet the new residents of the proposed development will receive an 
allocated parking bay at no extra cost.  
 
I appreciate that the permits may be to deter non-locals from parking outside 
this area and using it as an extension of the train station parking or when 
visiting Sainsburys local. However, the benefit of this is not outweighed by the 
inconvenience of our free parking being taken away. As well as this, this limits 
our ability to have visitors to our home. Disabled relatives who rely on close-by 
car parking spaces will now be unable to park outside our home, which seems 
very unfair. They do not have the luxury of using public transport or visiting on 
foot. It appears that there has been no consideration as to where people will 
park when visiting many residential properties or businesses in the vicinity.  
 
What adds insult to injury is that despite us living a stone's throw away from 
the development, it was left to a neighbour living in Lumley Close to inform us 

Page 31

mailto:Planning@durham.gov.uk


26 
 

of the parking plans. We have received no verbal or written communication 
about this. I have spoken to adjacent neighbours and they too have not been 
informed of the parking plans. It is almost as if our needs have been 
disregarded in this development. It makes me question whether this was a 
tactical decision from Karbon Homes, not to inform the residents who were 
most likely to be impacted by this proposal. We were obviously on the 
distribution list before the building work commenced, as we did receive initial 
communication regarding the demolition.  
 
For weeks now, we have endured incessant noise and unnecessary 
disturbances from the workmen operating from the site. While working from 
home, we have had multiple disturbances from workmen knocking at our door 
to enquire as to who owned certain vehicles. This is information that if I were 
privy to, I would not feel comfortable giving out to a practical stranger. 
Throughout multiple interactions with said workmen, none of them introduced 
themselves or stated the name of the company they were working for. We 
also had to put up with unnecessary beeping of horns when approaching the 
yard, appearing to alert other workmen of their arrival, rather than get out of 
their vehicles and speak at a normal volume face to face.  
 
It has already caused disturbances for our parking and it has upset many of 
the elderly people in our area who have been left with limited pavement 
access while the building work was ongoing. Some of our local wheelchair and 
scooter users have been left for some time without a suitable dropped kerb. I 
feel this whole development has caused us nothing but upheaval and left us 
feeling very apprehensive about the development as a whole.  
 
I would like this email to be lodged as an official dispute for the yellow 
lines/permit parking on Bullion Lane. We as existing residents, are not 
prepared to have our access compromised for the sake of a new 
development. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you regarding my dispute.  
 
Many thanks, 
 
Eleanor Ward 
Resident  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



27 
 

From: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 
Sent: 15 September 2022 11:59 
To: Eleanor Ward 
Subject: DISPUTE REGARDING KARBON HOMES DEVELOPMENT  
 

 
 
Good morning Ms Ward,  
 
Firstly, please accept my apologies for the delay in responding to your query 
with regards to the proposed introduction of 'no waiting at any time' restrictions 
(double yellow lines) on Bullion Lane as part of an amendment to the Chester-
Le-Street Parking & Waiting Restrictions Traffic Regulation Order (TRO). For 
clarification I have attached a copy of the proposals (reference: 'Bullion Lane 
Consultation Plan').  
 
I can advise that these double yellow lines have been requested as part of 
planning conditions for the Karbon Homes development. There is concern that 
the increase in residential properties, and with it the influx of additional 
vehicles, will lead to increased levels of obstructive parking around the 
crossroads of Bullion Lane, South Approach and The Avenue. This level of 
obstructive parking would restrict traffic flow and visibility for all approaching 
users; therefore, restrictions have been proposed in locations where there are 
legitimate concerns for road safety.  
 
With regards to permit restrictions, whilst there are already existing permit 
holder only restrictions (Monday-Saturday, 10-11am, 2-3pm) adjacent to No.'s 
2-18 Bullion Terrace, which have been in place since 2016, I can also advise 
there are no further proposals to introduce any additional permit restrictions on 
Bullion Lane as part of this TRO.  
 
This TRO has recently finished our formal and final stage of advertisement. As 
we have received objections for other locations as part of this order it will now 
be referred to Durham County Council's Highway's Committee where a panel 
of elected members will be presented with the proposals and their associated 
objections for discussion. The next available committee is currently scheduled 
for 10th November 2022.  
 
I hope this information has clarified some of your concerns however I have 
logged your objections and will arrange for future information, including 
invitation, to be sent to you directly from our Committee Services Team either 
via this email or your postal address if you would rather confirm your details.  
 
Despite this, If the response above has satisfied your concerns and you wish 
to withdraw your objection please could you advise by the 17th of October, at 

Page 33

mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk


28 
 

which point we will need to provide details of objectors to our committee 
services team.  
 
In the meantime, if you have any further concerns or would like to discuss this 
information in more detail please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Kind Regards, 
 
Ewan Brown 
Strategic Traffic Management Team 
 
Email: trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk   
Regeneration, Economy & Growth | County Hall | Durham | DH1 5UQ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

mailto:trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk


29 
 

Location 2 – Edward Street 

 

 

Page 35



30 
 

Internal Request 

CRM Reference: 451373515  

Incident Location:  Clarence Terrace, Chester-Le-Street 

Reported Incident: Road; Condition causing general concern;; this due to 

parking restrictions being imposed, and not being able to locate the right page 

to register my views, this system is terrible I have an issue with adding single 

yellow line to add to at CLARENCE TERRACE I reside at number 2 have 

great difficulty parking legally near my home. The council had introduced 

yellow lines on access; however, these are now going to be extended leaving 

virtually nowhere for residents to park especially near their homes. I have took 

this up with the council in the past as we have to compete with Outreach vans 

and Post office staff for spaces. And as no great surprise no change in fact 

less spaces, why can’t common sense prevail and say have single yellow line 

up one side and leave other side to park this is shocking how we have been 

totally ignored. 

yours 

Derek Smith 

please pass or forward to relevant department; its Edward Street where you 

intend to limit for parking for residents 2 Clarence Terrace, Chester-Le-Street, 

DH3 3DG 

 

From: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 
Sent: 20 September 2022 13:34 
To: Derek Smith 
Subject: Customer Service Request 133387 
 

 

Good afternoon Mr Smith, 

I have been forwarded your comments regarding parking restrictions on 

Edward Street as I am currently overseeing the amendment to the Chester-

Le-Street Parking & Waiting Restrictions Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).  

I can advise we have received numerous reports over recent years concerning 

the limited access/egress around the junction from Edward Street into 

Clarence Terrace as a result of Obstructive parking. This has led to a 

reduction in visibility for approaching traffic and limited access for larger 

vehicles to manoeuvre which does pose significant concern for road safety.  

Page 36

mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk


31 
 

Whilst it has been highlighted to us on a number of occasions that Edward 

Street is stretched in accommodating on-street parking on both sides we have 

been cautious and hesitant in our approach to address this obstructive parking 

in order to limit the displacement into the wider area.  

I have attached above a copy of these proposals for guidance (Ref: ‘Edward 

Street Rev 0_C’). The proposals of extending ‘restricted waiting, 8am-5pm’ 

restrictions around the immediate junction will prevent commuter vehicles from 

parking in this location whilst maintaining resident on-street parking on an 

evening. The extension of these restrictions for an additional junction on the 

northern side of the road will ensure there is a constant running lane of traffic 

when vehicles are approaching the junction for access/egress. 

We have discussed these restrictions in depth with representatives from 

Durham Constabulary and, whilst we acknowledge your suggestion of 

restrictions for the full extent on one side of Edward Street, we are unable to 

pursue such a request as the perceived benefits in access/egress would not 

outweigh the significant level of vehicle displacement and would exacerbate 

obstruction issues in the surrounding streets.   

I hope this information is useful however if you have any further concerns or 

would like to discuss this in more detail please feel free to contact me.  

Kind Regards, 

Ewan Brown 

Strategic Traffic Management Team 

Email: trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk  

Regeneration, Economy & Growth | County Hall | Durham | DH1 5UQ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

mailto:trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk


32 
 

Location 3 – Elmway 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



33 
 

From: LEWIS, Jamie (NHS BUSINESS SERVICES AUTHORITY)  

Sent: 01 September 2022 21:34 

To: Highways Orders <Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Parking on Elmway (CLS) Ref: 34322 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I am writing to you submit my objections to the order of ‘(Chester-Le-Street & 

Birtley) (Parking & Waiting Restrictions) Consolidation No.3 Order 2015 

(Amendment No.1) Order 2022’. 

The proposal to enforce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on Elmway is 

absurd. This has clearly not been thought out and in no way have the 

residents, the people directly affected by this, been consulted or involved in 

this decision-making process. Another way DCC demonstrates its lack of 

interest in the community. There are many ways in which this will affect the 

residents who currently use this parking. I myself am a resident at 149 

Elmway, and I use this parking as there are no other viable options. Many 

people’s answer is that the garages which come with the flats on Elmway 

should be utilised. Firstly, these were built in the mid-sixties and are not 

suitable for modern day cars, especially if a resident needs to use a specific 

vehicle for their job or caring duties. Secondly, there is no electricity to the 

garages and it is not possible to run electricity to them due to the way they 

have been built and their location. It is very poorly lit, especially in the winter 

months as there is only 1 street lamp which is positioned at the end of the flats 

in Rosewood Gardens. I do not feel comfortable using my garage due to this 

and do not feel this is a safe option for the other single women who also own 

garages. Thirdly, the whole estate has garages yet only a small percentage 

use them to store their vehicle due to the small size, and instead also park on 

the road side.  

If these restrictions are brought in and the residents park elsewhere (wherever 

that would be), where would visitors to these flats park? What these signs 

would do is isolate the residents of the Elmway flats. The resident of 157 

Elmway is in her 80’s and has recently lost her husband to covid. 

Understandably she has struggled being on her own ever since, but luckily her 

family visit her regularly throughout the week. Where do you propose her 

family are to park? Or do you suggest they stop visiting due to the 

enforcement? In a few years she may require carers – where will they park? 

Additionally, what if any of us are to get shopping delivered if we are unable to 

get to the shops? When we have work carried out on our homes, where are 

the tradesmen to park? As stated earlier, this has clearly not been thought out.  

Page 39

mailto:Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk


34 
 

As a resident on this section of Elmway I see the traffic daily. There is never 

an issue with vehicles passing one another. With the 20mph limit enforced 

there is more than enough time to react on the corner. Enforcing ‘no waiting at 

any time’ will only move the problem elsewhere. We, along with our visitors 

and tradesmen etc., will be forced to park outside of other people’s homes as 

opposed to our own creating another issue for those residents.  

DCC should invest the money in this to solve the issue altogether and help 

bring the estate in line with the times. The council-owned grass verge outside 

of the flats on Elmway (from 143-157) could be made into a layby or parking 

bays with assigned permits and easily solve the issue. This would also mean 

less grass for DCC to cut! The span of the proposed enforcement is also 

dramatic in relation to the proposed ‘problem area’. There is absolutely no 

need for the lines to be extended as far as that. If any lines are to be in place 

this should only cover the ‘blind’ section of the corner. If the straight part of the 

road outside of the flats was an issue, then this would need to be enforced 

around the whole estate, especially at the blind hilltops within the south part of 

the estate and other junctions.  

This proposal is a huge stress to myself and other residents affected. I am 

disgusted that once again we have not been consulted about this, even 

though I am aware other residents have requested a meeting to discuss this 

with DCC. It is a common theme it seems with DCC that residents views are 

ignored – just like the petrol station that you have agreed to on the old site of 

The Falcon. Another pointless proposal that is clearly not well thought out. 

Please listen to the views of the people directly affected by this, instead of 

voting for the quickest and cheapest option. 

Regards, 

 

From: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 

Sent: 12 September 2022 12:27 

To: Jamie Lewis 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Parking on Elmway (CLS) Ref: 34322 

Good afternoon,  

Thank you for contacting us regarding the proposed amendment to the 

Chester-Le-Street, Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order 

(TRO). With regards to ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions (double yellow 

lines) on Elmway, I can advise that these have been proposed after our 

officers attended a site meeting with representatives of Durham Constabulary, 

Page 40

mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk


35 
 

the local elected member and local residents to identify areas of significant 

road safety concern.  

It was highlighted that when vehicles park either side of Elmway, immediately 

and leading up to the junction with Hollycrest, visibility is restricted for all 

approaching road users. This has resulted in a number of head-to-head 

confrontations with vehicles.  

Advisory white markings were introduced here as an immediate measure to 

address obstructive parking, although unfortunately they have had limited 

impact in reducing the identified road safety concerns.  

I can advise that the double yellow lines are proposed for the current extent of 

the existing keep clear markings only and whilst they prevent parking, vehicles 

are permitted to load/unload from these restrictions for as long as necessary. 

Away from these restrictions, vehicles are permitted to park anywhere on the 

adopted highway providing it is taxed, tested and parked in a non-obstructive 

manner.  

With regards to the provision of additional parking facilities I can advise that 

whilst this would be something our Neighbourhoods team could investigate, 

due to the limitations of their available budget, the pursuit of such a scheme 

would likely require involvement from your local member. Cllr Tracie Smith 

tracie.smith@durham.gov.uk is the local member for this division and 

therefore I would recommend contacting Cllr Smith directly who may be able 

to raise this with our Neighbourhoods team.  

I understand the impact inconvenient parking can cause however we feel road 

safety must take precedent.  

As the formal advertisement period for this TRO is closed, this order will now 

be referred to Durham County Council’s Highway’s Committee where a panel 

of elected members will be presented with the proposals along with their 

associated objections for discussion. With the next available Highway’s 

Committee for this TRO scheduled for the 10th of November, I will arrange for 

further information, including invitation, to be sent to you directly.  

I hope this information is useful, if you have any further concerns in the 

meantime please do not hesitate to contact me.  

Kind Regards, 

Ewan Brown 

Strategic Traffic Management Team 

Page 41

mailto:tracie.smith@durham.gov.uk


36 
 

From: Gordon Rennie  

Sent: 18 August 2022 15:40 

To: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]: 

Hello Ewan , yesterday , notice when up attached to lampposts on Elmway 

outlining the proposed "no waiting at any time " amendment on Elmway . The 

residents in general agree that the bend in question is a problem and do not 

object to the action being taken but feel that the left side of the bend as you go 

in to Elmway is unnecessary long and should be in line with the length on the 

right-hand side . Also , has any thought gone in to cars that park there during 

the day/ night where the residents live in the flats . The last thing we ( the 

residents ) want is a parking war . So , do you have any suggestions on that 

issue where we can still park in peace . We ( the residents ) would appreciate 

a response from you and any positive suggestions would be helpful . Kind 

Regards on behalf of the residents . Gordon Rennie.  

From: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Sent: 18 August 2022 16:40 

To: Gordon Rennie 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]: 

Good Afternoon Mr Rennie,  

I can advise that following the advert we will look to introduce the double 

yellow lines for the extent of the existing white keep clear markings only. With 

regards to parking outside of these restrictions I can also advise that providing 

a vehicle is taxed and has a valid MOT it can park anywhere on the adopted 

highway providing it is not parked in a manner which restricts its use / 

access.   

I hope this information is useful, if you have any further concerns or would like 

to discuss this information in more detail please feel free to contact me.  

Many Thanks, 

Ewan Brown 

From: Gordon Rennie   

Sent: 18 August 2022 17:18 

To: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]: 

Page 42

mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk
mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk
mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk


37 
 

Thank you for your reply . The existing white lines are deemed unnecessary 

long , especially on the side of the flats , is there no way they can be a 

reduced  ? . And as for the parking , well , when one parks in front of 

someone's home and they say " you can't park there "  , which will be happen 

because it has in the past . Will you and the Highways department take 

responsibility for all the ill feelings of a disgruntled neighbourhood where up to 

now , everyone is getting along fine. 

From: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Sent: 25 August 2022 13:26 

To: Gordon Rennie 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL]: 

Good Afternoon Mr Rennie,  

I can advise the white markings were originally introduced after our officers 

attended a site meeting with representatives of Durham Constabulary, the 

local elected member and local residents to identify areas of significant road 

safety concern. The markings were introduced for their current extent in order 

to improve visibility for all approaching road users.  

I understand the impact inconvenient parking can cause however in this 

instance we feel road safety must take precedent.  

This legal order is currently at our formal and final stage of advertisement 

where the proposals are advertised on-site, online and in the local press for a 

period of 3 weeks. If you would like to raise your concerns formally as an 

objection guidance on this can be found on this advert/notice (a copy of which 

will be positioned on street furniture within the area). Following the end of the 

advertisement, should we receive any objections, this order will be referred to 

Durham County Council’s Highway’s Committee where a panel of elected 

members will be presented with the proposals and discuss the associated 

objections.  

If you would like to discuss this further please feel free to contact me.  

Many Thanks, 

Ewan Brown 

 

 

 

Page 43

mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk


38 
 

Location 4 – Front Street 

 

 

 

Page 44



39 
 

Location 5 – Tuart Street 

 

 

Page 45



40 
 

 

 

 

Page 46



41 
 

 

From: Alison Baxter   
Sent: 02 September 2022 13:39 
To: Highways Orders <Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Chester le Street and Birtley Parking and Waiting 
Restrictions Order 2022 
 

 
Hello, 
 
Ref: 34322 
 
I am writing with regard to the proposed order to introduce a no waiting area 
from Co-operative Street into Morningside Court. 
 
Having looked at the plans online I would like to seek clarity as to where the 
proposed zone precisely ends as it is a little difficult to tell. 
 
Currently there is a gap adjacent to my house (Athelstan Cottage) between 
the two keep clear markings which allows parking for up to 2 vehicles. This 
space does not cause any obstruction and it is still easy for other vehicles to 
manoeuvre in and out of the other parking bays. 
 
There is considerable pressure on the existing spaces within the whole of 
Morningside Court for a number of reasons - residents often have multiple 

Page 47

mailto:Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk


42 
 

vehicles per household, plus their visitors; the spaces are used by shoppers 
and workers coming into town who wish to avoid the restrictions on Co-
operative Street; they are used by residents of Co-operative Street who have 
not purchased permits, carers need to park to assist residents and people 
simply use the bays when there are no spaces left on Co-operative Street. In 
addition, the spaces marked for ‘Residents Only’ which apply to tenants of 
Bernicia Homes don’t tend to get used by those tenants. 
 
This pressure can make it difficult to park at times. As we are not residents of 
Co-operative Street we cannot participate in the parking permit scheme, nor 
can we park there. We are also not supposed to park in the Residents Only 
bays, although as these spaces have been used freely for over 35 years I 
would argue that there is now a right of way in existence so any sign is not 
enforceable. Tuart Street and the adjacent streets are also often very busy 
which means if we cannot park there or in Morningside Court we would have 
to seek a paid space in the town centre which does not seem reasonable. 
 
Therefore, the gap next to my house provides some additional spaces for 
when the others are full and helps considerably towards easing the pressure 
on parking. 
 
If this space is to be included and marked as a no waiting zone then I wish to 
register my objection to this. 
 
I would also note that it may be time to revisit extending the parking scheme 
beyond Co-operative Street and into the surrounding streets including 
Morningside Court. The displacement from Co-operative Street, additional 
parking pressures and introduction of the no waiting zones may mean there is 
a different consultation response this time. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Alison Baxter 
 

From: Traffic Consultations  
Sent: 12 September 2022 14:52 
To: Alison Baxter 
Cc: Highways Orders <Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL]:Chester le Street and Birtley Parking and Waiting 
Restrictions Order 2022 
 

 
Good afternoon,  
 

Page 48

mailto:Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk


43 
 

Thank you for contacting us regarding the proposed amendment to the 
Chester-Le-Street, Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order 
(TRO). With regards to ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions (double yellow 
lines) on Morningside Court. I can advise that these have been proposed 
following a number of reports of obstructive parking around the junctions 
leading from Co-Operative Terrace/Tuart Street. I have attached above a copy 
of the proposals on Morningside Court for reference (Ref: 'Tuart Street Rev 
0_B').  
 
It has been noted that when vehicles park around the accesses to 
Morningside Court, West View & Co-Operative Street Rear, access/egress 
can be obstructed due to the lack of manoeuvrable space on the highway. 
Parking immediately on and either side of these junctions also restricts the 
view of approaching traffic for all road users which poses concern for road 
safety.   
 
Advisory white markings were introduced here as an immediate measure to 
address obstructive parking, although unfortunately they have had limited 
impact in reducing the identified road safety concerns. 
 
I can advise that the double yellow lines are proposed for the current extent of 
the existing keep clear markings only and whilst they prevent parking, vehicles 
are permitted to load/unload from these restrictions for as long as necessary. 
Away from these restrictions, vehicles are permitted to park anywhere on the 
adopted highway providing it is taxed, tested and parked in a non-obstructive 
manner. In relation to Athelstan Cottage, these restrictions would not prevent 
parking in the location you have highlighted as we would agree there is no 
concern for obstruction or road safety directly adjacent to Athelstan Cottage.  
 
With regards to the extension of the existing permit parking restrictions on Co-
Operative Street, I can advise that initial proposals for this TRO included a 
proposed extension into Tuart Street however the desired criteria was not 
satisfied to pursue this scheme. When introducing formal restrictions we are 
bound by the legislation and guidance as outlined within Durham County 
Council's Parking Policy, further information on the guidance and 
requirements needed to progress a permit parking scheme can be found 
online on pages on pages 30-31 of our Parking Policies document via 
https://www.durham.gov.uk/media/20050/Parking-Policy-2016-
2019/pdf/ParkingPolicy2016-2019.pdf?m=636736452647770000.  
 
I hope this information is useful and addresses your concerns. This order is 
now scheduled to be considered at Durham County Council's next available 
Highway's Committee on 10th November 2022 where a panel of elected 
members will be presented with any proposals as part of this TRO which carry 
objections. If you therefore feel my response has not satisfied your concerns 
and you wish to uphold your objection please respond to this email and I will 

Page 49

https://www.durham.gov.uk/media/20050/Parking-Policy-2016-2019/pdf/ParkingPolicy2016-2019.pdf?m=636736452647770000
https://www.durham.gov.uk/media/20050/Parking-Policy-2016-2019/pdf/ParkingPolicy2016-2019.pdf?m=636736452647770000


44 
 

arrange for further information, including invitation, to be sent to you via our 
Committee Services team.  
 
Many Thanks, 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
Ewan Brown 

 

Page 50



Chester-Le-Street
Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Traffic Regulation Amendment 

Order 2022

Highways Committee 
10th November 2022

P
age 51



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 1: 
High Street

The Hermitage 
Academy

Chester-Le-Street 
Community 

Hospital

Chester-Le-Street 
Front Street

P
age 52



Location 1 – Bullion Lane – Proposals Locations
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

The increase in residential vehicles is expected to 
lead to displace obstructive parking onto South 

Approach.

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Currently, there is already a high density of 
parking on Bullion Lane.

Council Yard 
Development Site

P
age 53



Location 1 – Bullion Lane – Proposals Locations
Desk Study – Recorded March 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Proposals will ensure carriageway is unobstructed 
which will prevent congestion.

Bollards previously introduced to address 
obstructive parking on junction radius.

Durham Constabulary requested 
restrictions also be considered on south 

western radius during immediate 
Statutory Consultation. 

P
age 54



Location 1 – Bullion Lane – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 55



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Chester-Le-Street 
Front Street

Chester-Le-Street
Riverside Cricket 

Ground 

Location 2: 
Edward Street

Chester-Le-Street 
Community 

Hospital

P
age 56



Location 2 – Edward Street – Proposals Location
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Carriageway restricted to one lane of traffic 
approaching main junction with Clarence Terrace.

P
age 57



Location 2 – Edward Street – Proposals Locations
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Proposals will extend existing restrictions either 
side of carriageway.

Proposals will also extend for an additional gable 
end to ensure an unobstructed lane of traffic.

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

P
age 58



Location 2 – Edward Street – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 59



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Chester-Le-Street 
Front Street

Location 3: 
Elmway

Chester-Le-Street 
Police Station

P
age 60



Location 3 – Elmway – Proposals Location
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022 Visibility of approaching road users is completely 

restricted 

Advisory ‘Keep Clear’ markings 
initially introduced as a deterrent

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

P
age 61



Location 3 – Elmway – Proposals Locations
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Proposals will formalise existing advisory ‘keep 
clear’ markings.

The proposals will improve 
visibility for all approaching road 

users.

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

P
age 62



Location 3 – Elmway – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 63



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 4: 
Front Street

Chester-Le-Street 
Front Street

Chester-Le-Street
Riverside Cricket 

Ground 

Chester-Le-Street 
Community 

Hospital

P
age 64



Location 4 – Front Street – Proposals Location
Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Vehicles abusing the taxi rank, in combination 
with the bus stop adjacent, restrict traffic flow 

on an evening preventing access to taxis. 

The significant number of 
hospitality business in this area 

create a high demand for taxis on 
an evening.

P
age 65



Location 4 – Front Street – Proposals Locations

The existing restrictions permit 
vehicles to load/unload between 

6pm-6am which requires a 5 
minute grace period before a 
penalty charge can be issued. 

Vehicles have recognised this 
requirement and have begun to 
abuse the existing taxi ranks –

preventing access to taxis.

By amending the restrictions to 
include a ‘No Stopping’ element, 

enforcement officers will be 
permitted to issue instant 

penalty's to offending vehicles.

This will improve the turnover of 
available taxis which will reduce 

Anti-Social behaviour on an 
evening.

P
age 66



Location 4 – Front Street – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 67



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 5: 
Tuart Street

Chester-Le-Street 
Front Street

Chester-Le-Street
Riverside Cricket 

Ground 

Chester-Le-Street 
Community 

Hospital

P
age 68



Location 5 – Tuart Street – Proposals Location

Desk Study – Recorded April 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Vehicles parked immediately on the junction 
restrict visibility and limit manoeuvrability

Advisory Keep Clear Markings were initially 
introduced in both locations as a deterrent to 

obstructive parking.

P
age 69



Location 3 – Elmway – Proposals Locations

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Proposals will formalise existing advisory ‘keep clear’ 
markings as double yellow lines.

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Proposals will formalise existing advisory ‘keep clear’ 
markings as double yellow lines.

P
age 70



Location 5 – Tuart Street – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 71



Durham County Council - Summary

Location 1 – Bullion Lane – To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions (double yellow lines) on Bullion 
Lane and South Approach to satisfy the planning conditions of the Bullion Lane ‘Council Yard’ development. 

Location 2 – Edward Street - To extend existing restricted waiting (8am-5pm) restrictions either side of the 
junction from Clarence Terrace into Edward Street to address obstructive parking and improve accessibility.

Location 3 – Elmway - To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions in place of existing advisory ‘keep clear’ 
markings to address obstructive parking, improve visibility and improve traffic flow. 

Location 4 – Front Street - To amend existing waiting restrictions on Front Street to ‘No Stopping’ restrictions to 
improve enforcement and turnover of taxis within the rank on an evening. 

Location 5 – Tuart Street - To introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions in place of existing advisory keep 
clear markings either side of the junction from Tuart Street into West View and from Co-operative Street into 
Morningside Court to address obstructive parking and improve accessibility. 

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Committee resolves to set aside the objection/s and endorse the proposal, in principle, 

which will then guide the Corporate Director in the exercise of delegated decision making. 

Any questions? 

P
age 72



1 
 

 

             

 Highways Committee 

10th November 2022 

Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & 

Browney 

Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic 

Regulation Amendment Order 2022 

 Ordinary Decision/Key Decision No.  

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth 

Councillor Elizabeth Scott, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Economy and Growth.   

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Brandon 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To advise Members of objections received to the consultation 

concerning changes to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in Langley 

Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney. 

 

1.2 To request that members consider the objections made during the 

informal and formal consultation period. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to 

decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with the Amendment 

Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 

Economy and Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.  

The final decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under 

delegated powers. 

 

2 Executive Summary 

2.1 The County Council are committed to regularly reviewing Traffic 

Regulation Orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them are 

relevant and appropriate. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

2.2 Representations have been received requesting a review of existing, 

and provision of additional, restrictions in Langley Moor, Meadowfield, 

Brandon & Browney. 

2.3 Having considered these requests, Officers have determined that the 

changes listed below would be of benefit in terms of improving road 

safety and reducing congestion. It is therefore proposed to amend the 

current Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order for 

this area to allow the identified changes to be implemented. 

2.4 Local members fully supported all proposals. Durham Constabulary are 

in full support.  

2.5 Consultation Period: 

  From To 

Statutory Consultees 04.02.22 25.02.22 

Informal Consultation 29.03.22 20.04.22 

Formal Consultation 22.09.22 13.10.22 

 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 Committee is recommended to: 

Endorse the proposal, in principle, to amend the Langley Moor, 
Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney Parking and Waiting Restrictions, 
Traffic Regulation Order, with the final decision to be made by the 
Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

4 Proposal, Objections & Responses 

4.1 The proposed locations for the TRO that received objections during the 
consultation stages are detailed below.    

4.2 Location 1 – A690, High Street  (to introduce no waiting at any time 

restrictions) 

4.3 Proposal Background    

 The A690, High Street is the main access road connecting Langley 
Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon and Browney to settlements such as 
Durham City to the north and Willington to the south. To the far north of 
the High Street, as the commercial premises begin, white road hatching 
was installed to channel vehicles away from the existing on street bays 

Page 74



3 
 

 We have received reports via the local elected member, Councillor 
Jonathan Elmer, that vehicles have begun to park on these hatched 
markings which has reduced visibility and increased congestion.  

It is therefore proposed to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions 
for the extent of these hatched markings to further prevent vehicles from 
parking in an obstructive manner.  

During statutory consultation, Durham Constabulary highlighted the 
presence of existing informal double yellow lines on site on the 
northern-most junction to High Street South Back. It was requested 
these markings be formalised through this TRO to allow effective 
enforcement. 

Initial proposals also included proposals to extend the existing ‘limited 
waiting, Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm’ bays immediately south of the 
proposed ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions, however this proposed 
extension was withdrawn following responses from the informal 
consultation.  

4.4 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

27 2 3 

 

4.5 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

22.09.22 – 13.10.22 0 0 

 

4.6 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.7 Objections: 

 3 objections from local residents were recorded. As the informal 
consultation initially included proposals to extend existing parking 
restrictions (Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm, 2 hours, no return within 1 
hour), of the 3 objections received as part of the informal consultation, 
whilst none directly objected to proposed ‘no waiting at any time’ 
restrictions, the reasons have been summarised below: 

Page 75



4 
 

 “Current restrictions are too harsh, for residents and shop/office 
workers all along street.” 

 “2 hours parking will not work for my clients. Also, my staff and 
myself have nowhere else to park.” 

4.8 DCC Response: 

 Durham County Council were asked by Councillor Jonathan Elmer to 
consult on proposals to extend the existing parking restrictions 
(Monday-Saturday, 9am-5pm, 2 hours, no return within 1 hour).  

 These proposals aimed to improve vehicle turnover along Langley 
Moor’s commercialised High Street which would improve access to 
businesses in the area, in turn boosting their economic vitality.  

 Following an initial consultation exercise, it was clear that 
businesses in the area felt these restrictions would restrict access to 
their premises by clients rather than improve it. After raising this 
feedback with Councillor Elmer these proposals were withdrawn. 

 Whilst we understand there is a level of displacement when formal 
restrictions are introduced, it is proposed that ‘no waiting at any time’ 
restrictions be formalised in areas where parking causes legitimate 
concern for road safety in reducing the visibility of approaching road 
users.  

 Given there are existing informal markings in place at the junction 
from the A690, High Street into High Street South Back, whilst these 
aren’t currently enforceable, it is anticipated vehicles should not 
currently be parking in this location.   

4.9 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

4.10 Location 2 – Sawmills Lane  (to introduce no waiting at any time 

restrictions) 

4.11 Proposal Background    

 Sawmills Lane is accessed via the A690, High Street and is one of the 
major access routes leading through Brandon, to Brandon Village in the 
north.  

 We have received reports from local residents that vehicles parked 
around the access to Stoneacre Garages restrict visibility and traffic 
flow on Sawmill Lane. A combination of waiting and loading restrictions 
have previously been introduced on this stretch of road to address 
similar obstruction issues, including ‘no waiting and no 

Page 76



5 
 

loading/unloading at any time’ restrictions on the eastern side of this 
junction. 

It is now proposed to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on 
the western side of this junction to improve visibility and access/egress 
for approaching road users.    

4.12 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

1 0 1 

 

4.13 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

22.09.22 – 13.10.22 0 0 

 

4.14 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.15 Objections: 

 1 property has objected to this proposal, the reasons for their objection 
has been summarised below: 

 “Cars drive fast down Sawmills Lane. It slows the cars down.” 

4.16 DCC Response: 

 It has been reported that vehicles are parking immediately around 
the junction from Sawmills Lane leading into the Stoneacre garages. 
This obstructive parking is reducing visibility for road users 
approaching the junction.  

 In an effort to address this level of obstructive parking, ‘no waiting 
and no loading/unloading at any time’ restrictions were introduced on 
the eastern side of junction which has since displaced these issues 
to the western side. 

 Whilst speeding on Sawmills Lane has been raised as a concern it is 
believed there is sufficient unobstructive on-street parking which 
provides natural traffic calming however Councillor Jonathan Elmer 

Page 77



6 
 

has enquired about the feasibility of further traffic calming measures 
with Durham County Council’s Traffic Assets team. This will be 
addressed separately from this report.  

4.17 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

5 Conclusion 

5.1 Having considered the evidence of obstructive and inconsiderate parking 
and the objections to the proposals, Officers remain of the view that it is 
necessary to introduce the proposals in order to address the identified 
highway safety issues. Accordingly, it is recommended that Members 
agree in principle to endorse the proposal to proceed with the 
implementation of the Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney 
Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 
2022 with the final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under 
delegated powers. 

6 Background papers 

6.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File: 

L:\TRAFPROJ\06 REGULATION DESIGN & 

IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Langley Moor, Browney, Brandon & 

Meadowfield\Traffic Regulation Orders (Parking Restrictions)\2022 January 

Author(s) 

[Ewan Brown]    Tel:  03000 263953 

[Lee Mowbray]    Tel:  03000 263693 

[Kieron Moralee]    Tel:  03000 263368 

[Dave Lewin]    Tel:  03000 263582 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



7 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority 

and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Finance 

LTP Budget. 

Consultation 

Is in accordance with SI:2489. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

It is considered that there are no Equality and Diversity issues to be addressed. 

Climate Change 

This TRO will allow for effective management of traffic to reduce congestion, 

reducing the overall amount of CO2 emissions.  

Human Rights 

Any interference with human rights is considered to be necessary in accordance 

with the law and proportionate in order to address highway safety issues. 

Crime and Disorder 

This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and 

improve road safety. 

Staffing 

Carried out by Strategic Traffic.  

Accommodation 

No impact. 

Risk 

Not Applicable. 

Procurement 

Operations, DCC. 

  

Page 79



8 
 

Appendix 2:  Location of Proposals  

 

Location 1: 

High Street 

Page 80



9 
 

 

Location 2: 

Sawmills Lane 

Page 81



10 
 

Appendix 3:  Request History  

 

Location 1 – High Street:  

 
From: Cllr Jonathan Elmer <Jonathan.Elmer@durham.gov.uk>  
Sent: 15 September 2021 12:04 
To: Dave Lewin <dave.lewin@durham.gov.uk> 
Cc: Brian & Stephanie 
Subject: RE: Langley Moor Shopping Parade 

 
Hi Dave, 
 
I understand that this is a complex situation, but I’d very much appreciate your 
wider thoughts on the matter.  How best might we discourage parking in the 
white hatched areas and how best might we work with shop keepers and staff 
to dissuade them from taking up the available parking spaces (which restricts 
customer parking). 
 
Do see the useful email from Overture Music (on the high street) below. 
 
Best, 
 
Jonathan  
 

 
From: Brian & Stephanie   
Sent: 15 September 2021 10:34 
To: Cllr Jonathan Elmer <Jonathan.Elmer@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Langley Moor Shopping Parade 

 
Gents, 
 
Firstly, Jonathan I think I may have missed you off the circulation list for my 
previous email, this was accidental, I am sorry for this error. 
 
Just an update to confirm nothing has changed in the practice of parking on 
the A690 in Langley Moor - I attach a photo from mid-day last week. You will 
note parking on the full length of the hatched area from the junction (the lamp 
post in the foreground is about 4m from the side road). You will note cars 
parked in the restricted parking bay area - they are parked there at least 5 
days per week all day. 
 
To recap on events, Civil Enforcement came and photographed at least 1 car, 
which still parks in the same location most days as before. 

Page 82

mailto:Jonathan.Elmer@durham.gov.uk
mailto:dave.lewin@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Jonathan.Elmer@durham.gov.uk


11 
 

 
A police officer spoke to car owners who use the hatched area and sought 
clarification regarding the meaning of the white hatching. It turns out the 
County Council determined that the highway (A690) was too narrow at this 
point to safely have a (restricted) parking bay so wished to "discourage" 
parking by applying white hatchings. According to the car owners a council 
employee has apparently since written to the shop owners giving them 
permission to park at will on the hatched area. 
 
It appears bizarre that where the Council Highways dept. decide it's not safe 
to have parking they then write to give permission to park! so, does liability for 
parking in this unsafe area fall to the council as they are permitting it? 
interesting. 
 
So to recap, the "parking" team at County Hall say they have no jurisdiction to 
monitor parking on the white hatching and say it's a police matter. But the 
Police can't do anything because the council say it's ok. The upshot is that to 
avoid a parking ticket we should all park in the area where the road is too 
narrow to allow parking. 
 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Brian Yates 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



12 
 

Site Photos – Taken: 21.10.22 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 84



13 
 

Location 2 – Sawmills Lane:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



14 
 

Site Photos – Taken: 25.10.22 

  

   

Page 86



15 
 

Appendix 4:  Objection Details  

 
Location 1 – A690/High Street: 

 

 

Page 87



16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



17 
 

Location 2 – Sawmills Lane 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Langley Moor, Meadowfield, 
Brandon & Browney

Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Traffic Regulation Amendment 

Order 2022

Highways Committee 
10th November 2022P

age 91



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 1: 
High Street

Langley Moor Primary School

P
age 92



Location 1 – High Street – Proposals Locations

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

Vehicles parked over existing hatched 
markings:
- restrict visibility for road users 

approaching High Street South Back
- prevent the hatching from navigating 

vehicles away from the formalised 
parking bays. 

P
age 93



Location 1 – High Street – Proposals Locations
Desk Study – Recorded Aug 2022

The proposals will formalise existing double yellow lines 
allowing Durham County Council to enforce.

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

The proposals will improve visibility 
for all road users approaching the 

junction.

P
age 94



Location 1 – High Street – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 95



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 2: 
Sawmills Lane

Brandon Primary School

P
age 96



Location 2 – Sawmills Lane – Proposals Locations

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

Vehicles parked immediately on the junction restrict the 
view of vehicles approaching from the north west.

P
age 97



Location 2 – Sawmills Lane – Proposals Locations

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

Site Photo – Taken Oct 22

The proposals will improve the view for all road users 
approaching the junction.

There are currently existing restrictions on 
the north east corner of the junction to 

resolve similar road safety concerns

P
age 98



Location 2 – Sawmills Lane – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 99



Durham County Council - Summary

Location 1 – High Street:

The proposed restrictions have been requested to address access issues associated with obstructive 

parking on the A690, High Street and will improve visibility and access/egress for all road users. 

Location 2 – Sawmills Lane:

The proposed restrictions have been requested to address access issues associated with obstructive 

parking on Sawmills Lane and will improve visibility and access/egress for all road users. 

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Committee resolves to set aside the objection/s and endorse the proposal, 

in principle, which will then guide the Corporate Director in the exercise of delegated decision making. 

Any questions? 

P
age 100



1 
 

 

             

 Highways Committee 

10th November 2022 

Spennymoor 

Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic 

Regulation Amendment Order 2022 

 Ordinary Decision/Key Decision No.  

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth 

Councillor Elizabeth Scott, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Economy and Growth.   

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Spennymoor & Tudhoe 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To advise Members of objections received to the consultation 

concerning changes to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in 

Spennymoor. 

 

1.2 To request that members consider the objections made during the 

informal and formal consultation period. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to 

decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with the Amendment 

Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 

Economy and Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.  

The final decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under 

delegated powers. 

 

2 Executive Summary 

2.1 The County Council are committed to regularly reviewing Traffic 

Regulation Orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them are 

relevant and appropriate. 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

2.2 Representations have been received requesting a review of existing, 

and provision of additional, restrictions in Spennymoor. 

2.3 Having considered these requests, Officers have determined that the 

changes listed below would be of benefit in terms of improving road 

safety and reducing congestion. It is therefore proposed to amend the 

current Spennymoor Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic 

Regulation Order 2020 to allow the identified changes to be 

implemented. 

2.4 Local members fully supported all proposals. Durham Constabulary are 

in full support.  

2.5 Consultation Period: 

  From To 

Statutory Consultees 01.12.21 & 
17.06.22 

22.12.21 & 
08.07.22 

Informal Consultation 21.12.21 12.01.22 

Formal Consultation 09.07.22 30.07.22 

 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 Committee is recommended to: 

Endorse the proposal, in principle, to amend the Spennymoor Parking 
and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order 2020, with the final 
decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

4 Proposal, Objections & Responses 

4.1 The proposed locations for the TRO that received objections during the 
consultation stages are detailed below.    

4.2 Location 1 – Festival Walk & Holborn/Oxford Road  (to introduce no 

waiting at any time restrictions) 

4.3 Proposal Background    

 Festival Walk is located within the heart of Spennymoor’s town centre 
and has historically been viewed as the main commercial area of the 
town.  

 Following a decline in business tenancy, Festival Walk has recently 
seen redevelopment and the location has now attracted the occupancy 
of Aldi which is accessed via Holborn/Oxford Road. This redevelopment 
has also seen the introduction of a new off-street car park (Festival 

Page 102



3 
 

Walk Car Park) as a means of increasing parking provision for both 
residents and visitors of the surrounding commercial area. 

We have received reports from Councillor Liz Maddison that vehicles 
have begun to park either side of the Festival Walk access road 
(leading to Festival Walk Car Park). When such parking occurs traffic 
flow is restricted and access/egress from Festival Walk Car Park is 
impeded.  

 It is proposed to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions either side 
of the newly developed access road leading to Festival Walk Car Park, 
as well as either side of the access road leading from Holborn/Oxford 
Road into Aldi, to prevent obstructive parking and improve traffic flow.  

4.4 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

23 1 3 

 

4.5 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

09.07.22 – 30.07.22 0 2 

 

4.6 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.7 Objections: 

 3 properties have objected to this proposal, the reasons for these 
objections have been summarised below: 

 “The no waiting zone would directly impact my ability to park at my 
residence.” 

 “If these are introduced it will limit our space for parking.” 

 “I am not opposed to finding a way to limit the parking by way of 
permits for residents.” 

 “All local businesses will be affected by the removal of on street 
parking spaces.” 

Page 103



4 
 

4.8 DCC Response: 

 These restrictions have been proposed to improve road safety 
following a number of regeneration schemes in the area. Officers 
from Durham County Council’s Traffic Section have verified reports 
that vehicles parked on the access road leading to Festival Walk Car 
Park reduce visibility and obstruct access for all approaching road 
users.  

 Restrictions have been proposed in locations where there are 
legitimate concerns for road safety however they will still allow for 
two unrestricted sections on Festival Walk, near to the Brewers Arms 
and No.’s 1-3 Cheapside, for resident/visitor parking.  

 Alongside these sections of highway, residents are also able to use 
the new Festival Walk Car Park which remains unrestricted.  

 Whilst vehicles will not be permitted to park on the proposed 
restrictions, double yellow lines permit road users to load/unload and 
to board and alight (pick up and drop off) passengers. 

 With regards to resident permit parking restrictions, unfortunately I 
must advise that we would be unable to pursue such a scheme as 
this location does not satisfy the criteria within Durham County 
Council’s Parking Policies document.  

4.9 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

5 Conclusion 

5.1 Having considered the evidence of obstructive and inconsiderate parking 
and the objections to the proposals, Officers remain of the view that it is 
necessary to introduce the proposals in order to address the identified 
highway safety issues. Accordingly, it is recommended that Members 
agree in principle to endorse the proposal to proceed with the 
implementation of the Spennymoor Parking & Waiting Restrictions, 
Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 with the final decision to be 
made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

6 Background papers 

6.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File: 

L:\TRAFPROJ\06 REGULATION DESIGN & 
IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Spennymoor\Traffic Regulation Orders 
(Parking Restrictions)\2021 November 

 

 

Page 104



5 
 

Author(s) 

[Ewan Brown]    Tel:  03000 263953 

[Lee Mowbray]    Tel:  03000 263693 

[Kieron Moralee]    Tel:  03000 263368 

[Dave Lewin]    Tel:  03000 263582 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



6 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority 

and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Finance 

LTP Budget. 

Consultation 

Is in accordance with SI:2489. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

It is considered that there are no Equality and Diversity issues to be addressed. 

Climate Change 

This TRO will allow for effective management of traffic to reduce congestion, 

reducing the overall amount of CO2 emissions.  

Human Rights 

Any interference with human rights is considered to be necessary in accordance 

with the law and proportionate in order to address highway safety issues. 

Crime and Disorder 

This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and 

improve road safety. 

Staffing 

Carried out by Strategic Traffic.  

Accommodation 

No impact. 

Risk 

Not Applicable. 

Procurement 

Operations, DCC. 

  

Page 106



7 
 

Appendix 2:  Location of Proposals  

 

 

 

  

Location 1: Festival Walk 

Page 107



8 
 

Appendix 3:  Request History  

 

Location 1 – Festival Walk:  
 
From: Cllr Liz Maddison <Liz.Maddison@durham.gov.uk>  

Sent: 10 March 2022 10:25 

To: Ewan Brown <ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk> 

Cc: Sarah Robinson - Warden Team Leader (N'hoods) 

<Sarah.Robinson@durham.gov.uk>; Peter Broxton 

<peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: New car park Spennymoor 

Please see photograph of congestion at the frontage of the car park.  Vehicles 

are parking on the area marked up as ‘keep clear’. 

Peter - I know you have moved on but I am not sure who it was that you 

copied in last time to make aware of the situation at the car park.  I have 

already copied Ewan. 

Kind regards 

Liz 

Cllr Liz Maddison 

 

 

  

Page 108

mailto:Liz.Maddison@durham.gov.uk
mailto:ewan.brown@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Sarah.Robinson@durham.gov.uk
mailto:peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk


9 
 

Appendix 4:  Objection Details  

 
Location 1 – Festival Walk: 

 

Page 109



10 
 

 

Page 110



11 
 

 

 

Page 111



12 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



13 
 

From: Gina McLean  

Sent: 30 July 2022 17:37 

To: Highways Orders <Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Fwd: Festival Walk/Cheapside 

Dear Ms Renwick 

I have only noticed the notice on the lamp post today regarding the 

Prohibition of Waiting and Stopping Loading and Unloading etc at the area of 

1/3 Cheapside Spennymoor. 

Please find below attached also previous correspondence from my previous 

objection. 

As a resident Flat above 3 Cheapside and my partner is the landlord of Flat 

above 1 Cheapside and owner of both shops 1 and 3 Cheapside, I am a little 

disappointed as being  residents that we have not had a letter regarding this 

and had to find a notice cable tied to a lamp post. 

Firstly, there are only 4 Residents along Cheapside and I suggest we have 

some form of permit for parking.  As to the business premises along the street 

there are many of these and the employees can park relatively anywhere and 

walk to work.  I have to load my car for work and unload as I work from home 

and travel on the road and unload shopping, etc which I must say lately has 

been very hard work as we cannot get parked anywhere with all the current 

building works, even the car park is constantly full. 

Also there has been large KEEP CLEAR signage marked on the road right 

outside our back gate, so again this is restricting our parking, I do not recall 

this being on the original letter that was sent out to us. 

I do think the renovations to the town centre are brilliant but the parking has 

become a great issue and we are being penalised to park our cars near our 

home, I have had to park over the leisure centre car park on occasions to 

carry my shopping over and I am over 50 years of age, which I do not think is 

acceptable. 

I must also comment people still park on the Keep Clear and blocking the 

area  more than before hence our waste bins are not emptied which we have 

had a few issues over this also even the shop bins have been left due to the 

Refuse Collection stating they cannot get access, so this is also another big 

issue. 

I therefore disagree with the markings around our area and look forward to 

hearing your comments regarding this. 

Page 113

mailto:Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk


14 
 

But I do know we can object but I know the council will just disregard our 

comments and continue with the works, but these are our homes and we are 

entitled to have some sort of parking. 

I look forward to hearing from you at your earliest convenience. 

Yours faithfully 

Miss G M McLean 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

From: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 

Sent: 24 August 2022 12:31 

To: Highways Orders <  

Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Fwd: Festival Walk/Cheapside 

Good Afternoon Miss McLean,  

Thank you for contacting us regarding the proposed amendment to the 

Spennymoor Parking and Waiting Traffic Regulation Order. Firstly, please 

accept my apologies for the delay in responding to your query. 

I have attached a copy of the proposals for reference including a copy of the 

legal plan relating to this order (ref: DV107). I can advise these proposals are 

part of the same order that was consulted via a ballot card exercise in January 

earlier this year. I understand you have previously received correspondence 

from Peter Broxton however Peter has since left our team and this scheme 

has been handed over.  

When introducing any form of formal parking and/or waiting restriction we 

must abide by the legislation and guidance outlined within Durham County 

Council’s Parking Policy which ensures a fair and consistent approach is 

applied across the county. With regards to resident permit parking restrictions, 

unfortunately I must advise that we would be unable to pursue such a scheme 

as this location would not satisfy the criteria within this policy. Further 

information on the guidance for permit parking restrictions can be found on 

pages 30-31 of Durham County Council’s Parking Policy.  

With regards to the Keep Clear markings currently in place (I have attached a 

copy of the plan for these Ref: “Festival Walk – Keep Clear Markings) I can 

advise these advisory markings were introduced as an immediate measure to 

resolve obstructive parking and improve access /egress to the car park as a 

prelude to more formal restrictions. Whilst these restrictions have been 

proposed in locations where there are legitimate concerns for road safety, 

Page 114

mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk
https://www.durham.gov.uk/media/20050/Parking-Policy-2016-2019/pdf/ParkingPolicy2016-2019.pdf?m=636736452647770000


15 
 

they will still allow for two unrestricted sections on Festival Walk, near to 

where the Brewers Arms and No.’s 1-3 Cheapside for resident/visitor parking. 

Alongside these sections of highway, residents are also able to use the new 

Festival Walk Car Park which remains unrestricted.  

Whilst vehicles will not be permitted to park on the proposed restrictions, 

double yellow lines permit road users to load/unload and to board and alight 

(pick up and drop off) passengers.  

I can advise that your original objection was logged by Peter during the 

informal consultation and we are now arranging for this order to be referred to 

Durham County Council’s next available Highway’s Committee where the 

proposals and any associated objections will be discussed by a panel of 

elected members. I will therefore log your details with our committee services 

team to arrange for further correspondence to be sent to you.  

I hope this information is useful, however If you feel my response has not 

resolved your concerns or you would like to discuss this information in more 

detail please feel free to contact me.  

Kind Regards, 

Ewan Brown 

Strategic Traffic Management Team 

Email: trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk  

Regeneration, Economy & Growth | County Hall | Durham | DH1 5UQ 

 

 

  

Page 115

mailto:trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk


16 
 

From: deznwez  
Sent: 30 July 2022 16:12 
To: Highways Orders <Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Ref. 33483 

Dear Sharon Renwick  

In reference to the above number, I object to the planned proposal to make 
the areas listed, a no waiting at any time zone, as I am currently a private 
resident in the area. 

Located at flat 1 Cheapside the no waiting zone would directly impact my 
ability to park at my residence, I am not opposed to finding a way to limit the 
parking by way of permits for residents etc. as the parking situation has 
become increasingly worse with the build of the new Aldi store and other 
business in the area, making parking increasingly difficult this has been a on 
going issue for some time even before the new build. 

I look forward to a reply and wonder if this would be worth considering as a 
alternative solution. 

Faithfully  

Nathan Sutton 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

From: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 
Sent: 24 August 2022 11:42 
To: Highways Orders 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Ref. 33483 

Good Morning Mr Sutton,  

Thank you for contacting us regarding the proposed amendment to the 
Spennymoor Parking and Waiting Traffic Regulation Order. Firstly, please 
accept my apologies for the delay in responding to your query. I can advise 
that these restrictions have been proposed to improve road safety following a 
number of development schemes in the area. It has been reported that 
vehicles parked on the access road leading to Festival Walk Car Park reduce 
visibility and obstruct access for all approaching road users.  

I have attached a copy of the proposals for reference including a copy of the 
legal plan relating to this order (ref: DV107). Restrictions have been proposed 
in locations where there are legitimate concerns for road safety however they 
will still allow for two unrestricted sections on Festival Walk, near to where the 

Page 116

mailto:Highways.Orders@durham.gov.uk
mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk


17 
 

Brewers Arms and No.’s 1-3 Cheapside, for resident/visitor parking. Alongside 
these sections of highway, residents are also able to use the new Festival 
Walk Car Park which remains unrestricted.  

Whilst vehicles will not be permitted to park on the proposed restrictions, 
double yellow lines permit road users to load/unload and to board and alight 
(pick up and drop off) passengers.  

If you feel my response has not resolved your concerns or you would like to 
discuss this information in more detail please feel free to contact me.  

We currently have objections on file relating to this order which means it will 
need to be referred to Durham County Council’s Highway’s Committee where 
the proposals and any associated objections will be discussed by a panel of 
elected members. Therefore, if you wish to maintain your objection I will log 
your details with our committee services team to arrange for further 
correspondence to be sent to you.  

Kind Regards, 

Ewan Brown 

Strategic Traffic Management Team 

Email: trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk  

Regeneration, Economy & Growth | County Hall | Durham | DH1 5UQ 

______________________________________________________________ 

From: Traffic Co 
Sent: 24 August 2022 11:42 
To: Traffic Consultations <TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL]:Ref. 33483 

Thank you for your response. However I feel that although there is alternative 

parking available this fills quickly and is sometimes unavailable which may 

force myself and other residents to go without any parking and this concerns 

me deeply as I find it unacceptable that I may be unable to park at or near-by 

my own property  

Sincerely  

N.Sutton  

 

Page 117

mailto:trafficconsultations@durham.gov.uk
mailto:TrafficConsultations@durham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Spennymoor
Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Traffic Regulation Amendment 

Order 2022

Highways Committee 
10th November 2022

P
age 119



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 1: Festival Walk

Leisure Centre

Festival Walk 
Car Park

P
age 120



Location 1 – Festival Walk – Proposals Locations
Photo taken by Cllr Liz Maddison  – provided March 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Evidence of advisory ‘Keep Clear’ markings previously 
introduced to address obstructive parking. 

P
age 121



Location 1 – Festival Walk – Proposals Locations
Photo taken by Cllr Liz Maddison  – provided March 2022

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

Evidence of advisory ‘Keep Clear’ markings previously 
introduced to address obstructive parking. 

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

The proposals will maintain an unrestricted section of 
highway for the use of local residents / businesses. 

Site Photo – Taken Oct 2022

The proposals will ensure there is sufficient space in 
turning head for vehicle manoeuvrability. 

The proposals will extend 
existing restrictions to reflect 
position of new access to Aldi

P
age 122



Location 1 – Spennymoor – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 123



Durham County Council - Summary

Location 1 – Festival Walk:

The proposed restrictions have been requested to address access issues associated with obstructive 

parking on Festival Walk and will improve access for all road users. 

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Committee resolves to set aside the objection/s and endorse the proposal, 

in principle, which will then guide the Corporate Director in the exercise of delegated decision making. 

Any questions? 

P
age 124



1 
 

 

             

 Highways Committee 

10th November 2022 

Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill 

& Deaf Hill 

Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic 

Regulation Amendment Order 2022 

 Ordinary Decision/Key Decision No.  

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth 

Councillor Elizabeth Scott, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Economy and Growth.   

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Wingate 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To advise Members of objections received to the consultation 

concerning changes to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in Wheatley 

Hill, Wingate & Deaf Hill. 

 

1.2 To request that members consider the objections made during the 

informal and formal consultation period. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to 

decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with the Amendment 

Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 

Economy and Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.  

The final decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under 

delegated powers. 

 

2 Executive Summary 

2.1 The County Council are committed to regularly reviewing Traffic 

Regulation Orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them are 

relevant and appropriate. 

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

2.2 Representations have been received requesting a review of existing, 

and provision of additional, restrictions in Wingate.  

2.3 Having considered these requests, Officers have determined that the 

changes listed below would be of benefit in terms of improving road 

safety and reducing congestion. It is therefore proposed to amend the 

current Wheatley Hill, Wingate & Deaf Hill Parking and Waiting 

Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Order to allow the identified changes to 

be implemented. 

2.4 Local members fully supported all proposals. Durham Constabulary are 

in full support.  

2.5 Consultation Period: 

  From To 

Statutory Consultees 17.01.22 07.02.22 

Informal Consultation 07.03.22 28.03.22 

Formal Consultation 13.07.22 03.08.22 

 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 Committee is recommended to: 

Endorse the proposal, in principle, to amend the current Wheatley Hill, 
Wingate & Deaf Hill Parking and Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation 
Order, with the final decision to be made by the Corporate Director 
under delegated powers. 

4 Proposal, Objections & Responses 

4.1 The proposed locations for the TRO that received objections during the 
consultation stages are detailed below.    

4.2 Location 1 – B1280, Front Street  (to extend existing restricted 

waiting, 8am-6pm, restrictions & to introduce restricted bay restrictions, 

limited waiting Monday-Saturday 8am-6pm, 1 hour, no return within 2 

hours) 

4.3 Proposal Background    

 The B1280, Front Street is the main access route through Wingate 
providing access onto the A19 to the south where it meets the A179 and 
to the north east via the A181 overpass.  

Page 126



3 
 

We have received reports, via local member Councillor John Higgins, 
that the layby on the B1280, Front Street adjacent to the community 
centre is being used as long stay parking. This in turn is preventing 
short stay access to the services in the area. The manner of this parking 
has also encouraged inconvenient parking around the heavily trafficked 
Front Street which has led to obstruction issues and increased traffic 
congestion.  

It is therefore proposed to introduce ‘limited waiting, Monday-Saturday, 
8am-6pm, 1 hour no return within 2 hours’ restrictions for the extent of 
this layby to facilitate short stay access to nearby services/facilities and 
reduce obstructive parking. These bays will be unrestricted on an 
evening to facilitate overnight parking for any surrounding residential 
properties.  

In addition to the above, an extension of existing ‘restricted waiting, 
8am-6pm’ restrictions to the south of the Community Centre access are 
proposed. This will prevent obstructive parking and improve visibility 
and accessibility for all road users accessing the Community Centre.  

4.4 Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

11 1 2 

 

4.5 Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

09.07.22 – 30.07.22 0 0 

 

4.6 Summarised objections & responses: 

4.7 Objections: 

 2 properties have objected to this proposal, the reasons for these 
objections have been summarised below: 

 “Unfair on residents who don’t have off-street parking, would also 
impact proposed B&B at pub.” 

Page 127



4 
 

 “People living or visiting Church Street houses park here [in the 
layby].” 

4.8 DCC Response: 

 These restrictions aim to improve vehicle turnover in the layby which 
in turn will improve access to amenities and facilities in the area.  

 These bays will remain unrestricted on an evening, outside of the 
designated hours, to facilitate overnight parking for the surrounding 
residential properties.  

4.9 See appendix 4 for full details of the objection(s). 

5 Conclusion 

5.1 Having considered the evidence of obstructive and inconsiderate parking 
and the objections to the proposals, Officers remain of the view that it is 
necessary to introduce the proposals in order to address the identified 
highway safety issues. Accordingly, it is recommended that Members 
agree in principle to endorse the proposal to proceed with the 
implementation of the Wheatley Hill, Wingate & Deaf Hill Parking & 
Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 with the 
final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated 
powers. 

6 Background papers 

6.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File: 

L:\TRAFPROJ\06 REGULATION DESIGN & 
IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill & 
Deaf Hill\Traffic Regulation Orders (Parking Restrictions)\Jan 22 

 

Author(s) 

[Ewan Brown]    Tel:  03000 263953 

[Lee Mowbray]    Tel:  03000 263693 

[Kieron Moralee]    Tel:  03000 263368 

[Dave Lewin]    Tel:  03000 263582 

 

 

Page 128



5 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority 

and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Finance 

LTP Budget. 

Consultation 

Is in accordance with SI:2489. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

It is considered that there are no Equality and Diversity issues to be addressed. 

Climate Change 

This TRO will allow for effective management of traffic to reduce congestion, 

reducing the overall amount of CO2 emissions.  

Human Rights 

Any interference with human rights is considered to be necessary in accordance 

with the law and proportionate in order to address highway safety issues. 

Crime and Disorder 

This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and 

improve road safety. 

Staffing 

Carried out by Strategic Traffic.  

Accommodation 

No impact. 

Risk 

Not Applicable. 

Procurement 

Operations, DCC. 

  

Page 129



6 
 

Appendix 2:  Location of Proposals  

  

Location 1: Festival Walk 

Location 1: Front Street 

Page 130



7 
 

Appendix 3:  Request History  

 

Location 1 – Front Street 
 

From: Cllr John Higgins <J.Higgins@durham.gov.uk>  

Sent: 06 January 2022 13:44 

To: Peter Broxton <peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk> 

Subject: Fwd: Traffic Situation 

Good afternoon Peter,  

Once again thank you for your time this Afternoon and for your help and 

advice regarding the matters we discussed, it’s very much appreciated. 

Please see below email Peter that I received yesterday from Ms Rachel 

Wilson Wingate Primary School COG, I have also enclosed the photo of the 

car that is parking on the new footpath outside the Community Centre. 

Regards. 

John. 

 

From: Peter Broxton <peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk> 

Sent: 06 January 2022 14:22 

To: Cllr John Higgins <J.Higgins@durham.gov.uk>; Claire Ford 

<Claire.Ford@durham.gov.uk>  

Subject: RE: Traffic Situation 

Thanks John,  

Not a problem at all.  

If you can find out about the bollard installation in that location, and if you have 

any difficulties please let me know and I will then investigate the matter to see 

if there is scope for us gaining budget for them.  

I have checked the current order for the double yellow lines outside the 

Community Centre, it seems on our system there should be a single yellow 

(Mon-Fri 8am-6pm) which is great. So, we can have then installed when the 

weather permits if your happy with that John. I wish I had a look at the signs 

now, but I will get one of the lads to check for me. So quick solution there.  

Page 131

mailto:J.Higgins@durham.gov.uk
mailto:peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk
mailto:peter.broxton@durham.gov.uk
mailto:J.Higgins@durham.gov.uk
mailto:Claire.Ford@durham.gov.uk


8 
 

For the rest of the items my colleague Ewan will oversee this on my behalf. He 

works within the same team and is very helpful. I feel it is worth Ewan doing 

this as he has a bit more flexibility at the moment and will be able to get things 

moving a little quicker than I can.  

I will: 

- Community Centre possibility for 2/3 disabled bays to be installed. 
- look into making the layby (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm 1hr no return in 2hrs) 

which will mirror that of the layby further down the road. 
- look into double yellows in the back road behind Wingate Nursery with 

them being over the driveway of the first property and continuous on the 
Nursery side up to the layby.  

 
Claire,  

When Coupeline attend to do the line extension on the industrial estate in 

Wingate, can they please ensure the section outside the community centre 

(south of the image in red hatch) is also reinstalled. This is on block paving but 

was previously removed by the last County Councillor. We now want it 

reinstating as per the TRO. Any questions give me a shout. Image below.  

 

Many Thanks,  

Peter Broxton 

 

Page 132



9 
 

Site Photos – Taken 25.10.22 

 

 

 

Page 133



10 
 

 

Appendix 4:  Objection Details  

 
Location 1 – Front Street: 

 

 

 

Page 134



11 
 

 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington 
Hill & Deaf Hill

Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Traffic Regulation Amendment 

Order 2022
Highways Committee 
10th November 2022P

age 137



Location Plan of Proposals and Associated Buildings

Location 1: Front Street

Community Centre

Wingate Infant 
School

P
age 138



Location 1 – Front Street – Proposals Locations
Site Photo – taken Oct 2022

Desk Study – Photo taken Aug 2022

P
age 139



Location 1 – Front Street – Proposals Locations
Site Photo – taken Oct 2022

Proposals will allow Durham County Council 
to enforce existing road markings.

Will improve vehicle turnover in layby, 
improving access to amenities in the area.

Desk Study – Photo taken Aug 2022

P
age 140



Location 1 – Front Street – Proposals & Objectors

P
age 141



Durham County Council - Summary

Location 1 – Front Street: 

- To extend existing ‘restricted waiting’ restrictions (8am-6pm) on Front Street to address obstructive 

parking during peak hours and improve traffic flow. 

- To introduce a ‘restricted bay’ (limited waiting, Monday-Saturday, 8am-6pm, 1 hour no return within 2 

hours) to increase vehicle turnover and improve accessibility. 

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Committee resolves to set aside the objection/s and endorse the proposal, 

in principle, which will then guide the Corporate Director in the exercise of delegated decision making. 

Any questions? 

P
age 142



 

             

        

 Highways Committee 

10th November 2022 

 Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston  

Parking & Waiting Restrictions 

Amendment Order 2022 

 Ordinary Decision/Key Decision No.  

 

Report of Corporate Management Team 

Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & 
Growth 

Councillor Elizabeth Scott, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration, Economy and Growth.   

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Pelton 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To advise Members of objections received to the consultation 

concerning changes to the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) in Pelton, 

Perkinsville and Ouston. 

 

1.2 To request that members consider the objections made during the 

informal and formal consultation period. 

 

1.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to 

decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with the Amendment 

Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, 

Economy and Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.  

The final decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under 

delegated powers. 

 

 

 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



2 Executive Summary 

2.1 The County Council are committed to regularly reviewing Traffic 

Regulation Orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them are 

relevant and appropriate. 

2.2 Representations have been received requesting a review of existing, 

and provision of additional, restrictions in Pelton, Perkinsville and 

Ouston. 

2.3 Having considered these requests, Officers have determined that the 

changes listed below would be of benefit in terms of improving road 

safety and reducing congestion. It is therefore proposed to amend the 

current Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston Parking and Waiting 

Restrictions Order 2022 to allow the identified changes to be 

implemented. 

2.4 All Local Members and Durham Constabulary have been consulted and 

raised no objection to the proposal. 

2.5 Consultation Period: 

  From To 

Statutory Consultees 15-Feb-22 08-Mar-22 

Informal Consultation 10-Mar-22 31-May-22 

Formal Consultation 22-Sep-22 13-Oct-22 

 

3 Recommendation(s) 

3.1 Committee is recommended to: 

Endorse the proposal, in principle, to amend the Pelton, Perkinsville and 
Ouston Parking and Waiting Restrictions Order 2022. With the final 
decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

4 Proposal, Objections & Responses 

4.1 The proposed locations for the TRO that received objections during the 
consultation stages are detailed below.    

 

 

 

Page 144



4.2 Location 1 – Newbridge Banks/Pelton Lane Junction (Introduce ‘no 

waiting at any time’ restrictions) 

Proposal background 

Newbridge Banks is a busy main road leading to Pelton Lane in Grange 

Villa. The junction area is fronted by several residential properties, a 

number of which have driveways which access and egress onto / from 

the junction area.  Concerns have been raised in the past regarding 

visibility issues on this junction and this resulted in Durham County 

Council adopting land to improve the visibility at this location.  

Since the footway width on the northern side of the junction was 

increased to improve visibility, motorists have started using the area to 

park on which in turn causes obstruction issues. There have also been 

concerns raised regarding obstructive parking on the southern side of 

the junction. There is a business situated here which attracts custom 

and the manner that they park their vehicles can cause obstruction / 

visibility issues.  There is alternative ample parking within a short 

walking distance. 

It is proposed to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on both 

sides of the junction of Newbridge Banks to Pelton Lane.  

Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

4 2 1 

 

Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

22/09/22 – 13/10/22 0 0 

 

 

 

Page 145



Summarised objections & responses: 

Objections: 

1 person has objected to this proposal at the informal consultation 

stage, the reasons for these objections have been summarised below: 

 There were no comments available. 

DCC Response: 

 N/A 

See appendix 3 for full details of the objection(s).  

4.3 Location 2 – Station Road to Stony Lane (Introduce no waiting at any 

time restrictions) 

Proposal Background 

Stony Lane approaches its junction with Station Road on a steep 

incline. Concerns have been raised regarding poor visibility when 

exiting Stony Lane onto Station Road caused by parking on both sides 

of the junction.  

It is therefore proposed that ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions be 

introduced at this location to address this. 

Informal Consultation: 

Total Properties 

balloted 

Number in favour Number opposed  

2 0 2 

 

Formal Consultation: 

Consultation dates Expressions in favour Expressions against  

22/09/22 – 13/10/22 0 0 

 

 

Page 146



Summarised objections & responses: 

Objections: 

2 people have objected to this proposal at the informal consultation 

stage, the reasons for these objections have been summarised below: 

 Would negatively affect any future sales for the property and 

disadvantages against adjoining property 

 Won’t be able to park outside their home 

DCC Response: 

 Site investigations have shown there to be times when 

inconsiderate parking around the junction impedes visibility for 

other road users. The restrictions will ensure the junction area is 

kept clear whilst the remainder of the street will remain 

unrestricted. Accordingly, there is no justification to extend the 

proposed restrictions to the remainder of the street. 

 It is considered that the proposed location of the restrictions will 

address obstructive parking on the mouth of the junction. 

 Whilst vehicles are not permitted to park here, they may 

load/unload and board/alight passengers for as long as 

necessary. 

 Whilst the householder will not be able to park on the highway 

directly outside of their home, it is considered that the highway 

safety benefits to be secured outweigh any inconvenience to the 

householder in this regard. 

5 Conclusion 

5.1 Having considered the evidence of obstructive and inconsiderate parking 
and the objections to the proposals, Officers remain of the view that it is 
necessary to introduce the proposals in order to address the identified 
highway safety issues. Accordingly, it is recommended that Members 
agree in principle to endorse the proposal to proceed with the 
implementation of the Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston Parking and 
Waiting Restrictions Amendment Order 2022, with the final decision to be 
made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers. 

6 Background papers 

6.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File: 

Page 147



L:\TRAFPROJ\06REGULATIONDESIGN&IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Pel
tonPerkinsvilleandOuston\TrafficRegulationOrders(ParkingRestrictions)\2022 
January 

 

Author(s) 

[Abby Radford]    Tel:  03000 268196 

[Lee Mowbray]    Tel:  03000 263693 

[Kieron Moralee]    Tel:  03000 263368 

[Dave Lewin]    Tel:  03000 263582 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority 

and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements. 

Finance 

LTP Budget. 

Consultation 

Is in accordance with SI:2489. 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

It is considered that there are no Equality and Diversity issues to be addressed. 

Climate Change 

This TRO will allow for effective management of traffic to reduce congestion, 

reducing the overall amount of CO2 emissions.  

Human Rights 

Any interference with human rights is considered to be necessary in accordance 

with the law and proportionate in order to address highway safety issues. 

Crime and Disorder 

This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and 

improve road safety. 

Page 148



Staffing 

Carried out by Strategic Traffic.  

Accommodation 

No impact. 

Risk 

Not Applicable. 

Procurement 

Operations, DCC. 

  

Page 149



Appendix 2:  Location of Proposals  

 

 

 

  

Page 150



Appendix 3:  Objection Details  

 

Location 1: Newbridge Banks to Pelton Lane Junction 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



Location 2: Station Road to Stony Lane 

 

Page 152



 

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston
Parking & Waiting Restrictions 
Traffic Regulation Amendment 

Order 2022

Highways Committee 
10th November 2022

P
age 155



Location Plan of ProposalsP
age 156



Location 1 – Newbridge Banks to Pelton Lane – Proposals Locations

Image taken from Google – Mar 22

‘No Waiting At Any Time’ 
Restrictions

P
age 157



Location 1 – Briardene – Proposals & Objectors

1 Objection Received

P
age 158



Location Plan of Proposals

P
age 159



Location 2 – Station Road to Stony Lane Junction – Proposals Location

‘No Waiting At Any Time’ 
Restrictions

P
age 160



Location 2 – Sutton Street – Proposals & Objectors

2 Objections Received

P
age 161



Durham County Council - Summary

Location 1 – Newbridge Banks to Pelton Lane– The proposed restrictions have been requested due 

to reports of obstructive parking on the junction of Newbridge Banks and Station Road resulting in 

visibility issues. 

Location 2 – Station Road to Stony Lane- The proposed restrictions have been requested due to 

reports of obstructive parking on the junction of Station Road to Stony Lane resulting in visibility issues. 

Recommendation

Officers recommend that the Committee are asked to decide, in principle only, whether to proceed with 

the Amendment Order, which will then guide the Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy and 

Growth in the exercise of delegated decision making.

Any questions? 

P
age 162


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 October 2022
	5 Chester-Le-Street and Birtley Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth
	CLS - Highways Committee

	6 Langley Moor, Meadowfield, Brandon & Browney Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth
	Langley Moor - Highways Committee

	7 Spennymoor Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth
	Spennymoor - Highways Committee

	8 Wheatley Hill, Wingate, Quarrington Hill & Deaf Hill Parking & Waiting Restrictions, Traffic Regulation Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth
	Wingate - Highways Committee

	9 Pelton, Perkinsville and Ouston Parking & Waiting Restrictions Amendment Order 2022 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration, Economy & Growth
	Pelton TRO - Highways Committee


